

1                   BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH

2 In the Matter of the Pass-Through  
Application of Questar Gas  
3 Company for an Adjustment in Docket No. 15-057-11  
Rates and Charges for Natural Gas  
4 Service in Utah

5 In the Matter of the Application  
of Questar Gas Company to Amortize Docket No. 15-057-12  
6 the Conservation Enabling Tariff  
Balancing Account

7 In the Matter of the Application  
8 of Questar Gas Company to Change  
the Base Distribution Non-Gas Rate Docket No. 15-057-13  
9 and the Infrastructure Rate  
Adjustment

10 In the Matter of the Application  
11 of Questar Gas Company for a  
12 Tariff Change and Adjustment to the Low Income Assistance/Energy Assistance Rate

Docket No. 15-057-14

~~~~~

15 HEARING PROCEEDINGS

16 ~~~~~

17      TAKEN AT:      Public Service Commission  
                                Hearing Room 403  
18                      160 East 300 South  
                                Salt Lake City, Utah  
19      DATE:          Thursday, September 24, 2015  
            TIME:          9:01 a.m.  
20      REPORTER:      Daren S. Bloxham, R.P.R.

21

22

23

24

25 JOB NUMBER: 265194-A

1 APPEARANCES

2 PRESIDING OFFICER:  
Melanie Reif

3  
4 FOR DIVISION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES:  
Patricia E. Schmid  
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL  
5 160 East 300 South, Fifth Floor  
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114

6  
7 FOR OFFICE OF CONSUMER SERVICES:  
Rex W. Olsen  
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL  
8 160 East 300 South, Fifth Floor  
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114

9  
10 FOR QUESTAR GAS COMPANY:  
Jenniffer Nelson Clark  
SENIOR CORPORATE COUNSEL  
11 333 South State Street  
Salt Lake City, Utah 84145

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

|    |                            |       |
|----|----------------------------|-------|
| 1  | INDEX OF EXAMINATION       |       |
| 2  | WITNESS                    | PAGE  |
| 3  | JORDAN STEPHENSON          |       |
| 4  | EXAMINATION BY: MS. CLARK  | 6     |
| 5  | EXAMINATION BY: ALJ REIF   | 12    |
| 6  | ERIC ORTON                 |       |
| 7  | EXAMINATION BY: MS. SCHMID | 14    |
| 8  | EXAMINATION BY: ALJ REIF   | 17    |
| 9  | AUSTIN SUMMERS             |       |
| 10 | EXAMINATION BY: MS. CLARK  | 22    |
| 11 | EXAMINATION BY: ALF REIF   | 25    |
| 12 | DOUGLAS WHEELRIGHT         |       |
| 13 | EXAMINATION BY: MS. SCHMID | 3, 31 |
| 14 | EXAMINATION BY: MS. CLARK  | 30    |
| 15 | EXAMINATION BY: ALF REIF   | 33    |
| 16 | KELLY MENDENHALL           |       |
| 17 | EXAMINATION BY: MS. CLARK  | 36    |
| 18 | EXAMINATION BY: ALJ REIF   | 38    |
| 19 | EXAMINATION BY: MS. SCHMID |       |
| 20 | DANNY MARTINEZ             |       |
| 21 | EXAMINATION BY: MR. OLSEN  | 59    |
| 22 | EXAMINATION BY: ALJ REIF   | 61    |
| 23 |                            |       |
| 24 | INDEX OF EXHIBITS          |       |
| 25 | Application and exhibits   | 11    |
|    | Action Request Response    | 16    |
|    | Application and exhibits   | 23    |
|    | Action Request Response    | 28    |
|    | Application and exhibits   | 37    |
|    | Application and exhibits   | 49    |

1 P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

2 --oOo--

3 ALJ REIF: Good morning, everyone. I'm  
4 Melanie Reif. I serve as legal counsel and presiding  
5 officer for the Utah Commission. This morning is the  
6 time and place for the hearing in several dockets.  
7 Those dockets are 15-057-11, 12, 13, and 14.

8 The matters are entitled the Matter of  
9 Pass-Through Application of Questar Gas Company for an  
10 Adjustment in Rates and Charges for Natural Gas Service  
11 in Utah, in the Matter of the Application of Questar  
12 Gas Company to Amortize the Conservation Enabling  
13 Tariff Balancing Account, in the Matter of the  
14 Application of Questar Gas Company to Change the Base  
15 Distribution Non-Gas Rate and Infrastructure Rate  
16 Adjustment.

17 And the last is in the Matter of the  
18 Application of Questar Gas Company for a Tariff Change  
19 and Adjustment to the Low Income Assistance Energy  
20 Assistance Rate.

21 Welcome, and let's start by taking  
22 appearances starting with you, Ms. Clark.

23 MS. CLARK: Thank you. My name is Jenniffer  
24 Nelson Clark. I'm counsel for Questar Gas Company.  
25 And I have with me witnesses on the various dockets.

1 Mr. Jordan Stephenson will be speaking to the 13  
2 Docket, the infrastructure rate adjustment.

3 Mr. Kelly Mendenhall will be speaking to the  
4 CET amortization docket. That's the 12 Docket, and  
5 also to the Low Income Assistance Energy Assistance  
6 Rate, which is the 14 Docket. And Mr. Austin Summers  
7 at the end of the table will be speaking to the 11  
8 Docket, the pass-through.

9 ALJ REIF: Thank you.

10 MS. SCHMID: Good morning. Patricia E.  
11 Schmid with the Attorney General's Office on behalf of  
12 the Division of Public Utilities. The Division has two  
13 witnesses in this group of dockets. With regard to  
14 Docket No. 15-057-13, the Division witness would be  
15 Mr. Eric Orton. And with regard to the three other  
16 dockets, the Division's witness will be Douglas D.  
17 Wheelright. Thank you.

18 ALJ REIF: Thank you.

19 MR. OLSEN: Rex Olsen with the Attorney  
20 General's Office on behalf of the Office of Consumer  
21 Services. And we will have one witness today, Danny  
22 Martinez, for each of the dockets.

23 ALJ REIF: Thank you, Mr. Olsen. If you  
24 would kindly bring your microphone a bit closer to you.  
25 I could barely hear you, so I know that those on the

1 phone would probably have a difficult time.

2 MR. OLSEN: I apologize. I'm having some  
3 difficulty these days with my voice.

4 ALJ REIF: Thank you. Okay. Just for  
5 clarification as we discussed before we went on the  
6 record this morning, we'll be taking the 13 Docket  
7 first. That is the change to the base distribution  
8 non-gas rate and infrastructure rate.

9 Ms. Clark?

10 MS. CLARK: Thank you. The Company calls  
11 Mr. Stephenson.

12 ALJ REIF: Mr. Stephenson?

13 MS. CLARK: He's prepared to be sworn.

14 THE WITNESS: Yes.

15 --oOo--

16 JORDAN STEPHENSON,  
17 having been first duly sworn to tell the  
18 truth, was examined and testified as follows:

19 EXAMINATION

20 BY MS. CLARK:

21 Q. Could you please state your full name and  
22 business address for the record, please?

23 A. Jordan Stephenson, 333 South State.

24 Q. What position do you hold -- who do you work  
25 for, Mr. Stephenson?

1 A. Questar Gas Company.

2 Q. And what position do you hold at Questar Gas  
3 Company?

4 A. I'm a senior regulatory analyst.

5 Q. With regard to the 15-057-13 Docket, did you  
6 prepare the application and exhibits, or were they  
7 prepared under your direction?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. And do you have any corrections to that  
10 application or its exhibits?

11 A. Yes.

12 MS. CLARK: May I approach?

13 ALJ REIF: Yes, you may. Do you have a copy  
14 for the court reporter?

15 MS. CLARK: I do. I apologize. I've  
16 provided prior to the beginning of the hearing copies  
17 to counsel and to the court reporter.

18 ALJ REIF: Thank you very much.

19 Q. (By Ms. Clark) Mr. Stephenson, would you  
20 please describe the changes you would make to the  
21 application and its exhibits?

22 A. Yes. To begin, I just refer to Exhibit 1.1,  
23 page 4. And the correction involves the reduction for  
24 the interruption penalty on line 14 of that exhibit.  
25 The interruption penalty credit had originally included

1 DNG, SNG, and commodity components of the rate. After  
2 careful reading of Section 3.02 of the tariff --

3 MR. OLSEN: Excuse me. Your Honor, I think  
4 maybe he's talking about line 13 rather than 14. Maybe  
5 I misheard.

6 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. I referred to the  
7 wrong -- yes, it's line 13. That's correct.

8 ALJ REIF: Thank you.

9 THE WITNESS: Yeah. So after careful reading  
10 of 3.02 of the tariff sheets, I concluded that the DNG  
11 portion only should have been included in calculating  
12 that credit in the infrastructure tracker filing. The  
13 impact of this is a reduction of the credit of \$57,438.  
14 This results in a credit of \$440,200 shown on line 13  
15 of our revised exhibit that we will provide today that  
16 has been provided.

17 Q. (By Ms. Clark) Are there corrections to any  
18 other exhibits?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Could you walk us through those as well?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Thank you.

23 A. So moving on past Exhibit 1.1, page R,  
24 Exhibit 1.2 is also impacted. And that's because the  
25 revenue from Lakeside that we forecast is different

1 because the rates have slightly changed due to the  
2 reduction in the revenue requirement or the increase in  
3 the revenue requirement. I did that correct. Excuse  
4 me.

5 Exhibit 1.3 has also been revised. And  
6 line 8 of column E reflects the updated revenue  
7 requirement of \$5.3 million. Exhibit 1.5 has been  
8 revised, which is the rate calculation for the \$5.3  
9 million revenue requirement.

10 Exhibit 1.6, the typical customer impact has  
11 been changed as well. Line 13 shows an 85 cent annual  
12 charge, which is an increase from 82 cents that had  
13 been filed previously. And that is all the exhibits  
14 that have been impacted.

15 **Q. Mr. Stephenson, are you also familiar with**  
16 **the submission of supplemental information that was**  
17 **filed in this docket on September 14th, I believe?**

18 **A. Yes.**

19 **Q. And was that prepared by you or under your**  
20 **direction?**

21 **A. Yes.**

22 **Q. And each of the exhibits that were provided**  
23 **today, and I'm just going to name each of them for**  
24 **clarity in the record, Exhibit 1.1R, page 4 of 4,**  
25 **Exhibit 1.2R, Exhibit 1.3R, Exhibit 1.5R, and**

1 Exhibit 1.6R, were each of those prepared by you or  
2 under your direction?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Would you please summarize the relief the  
5 company is seeking in this docket?

6 A. Yes. In Docket No. 15-057-13, the company  
7 seeks to adjust the infrastructure tracker replacement  
8 rate to include investing related to replacement  
9 projects that were in service as of August 31, 2015.

10 The majority of the incremental investments  
11 since the last tracker filing comes from the Salt Lake,  
12 Provo, and North Ogden IHP belt main projects. The  
13 company is requesting a \$1.8 million increase in annual  
14 revenue related to this investment, resulting in a  
15 revenue requirement of \$5.9 million.

16 This \$5.9 million is reduced by three  
17 adjustments related to changing tax treatment,  
18 interruption penalties collected in March of 2015, and  
19 incremental special contract revenue from the  
20 Lakeside 1 agreement.

21 After these adjustments, the total annual  
22 revenue requirement proposed by the company is \$5.3  
23 million. If approved, this would result in an increase  
24 of 91 cents per year paid by the typical customer using  
25 80 dekatherms.

1 In addition, the company proposes that the  
2 stipulated step 2 adjustment to base rates ordered in  
3 the most recent general rate case, Docket No.  
4 13-057-05, and the subsequent depreciation study,  
5 Docket No. 13-0570-19, be implemented in this docket.

6 This change in base rates would reduce a  
7 typical customer's bill by 6 cents per year. If  
8 approved, the overall impact is an increase in  
9 customer's yearly bills of 85 cents or .12 percent as a  
10 result of these changes. And this concludes my  
11 summary.

12 MS. CLARK: The Company would move for the  
13 admission as evidence the application and its exhibits  
14 that was submitted on September 2nd, 2015, the  
15 submission of supplemental information dated  
16 September 4, 2015, and on file in this docket, and also  
17 those exhibits previously identified by Mr. Stephenson  
18 this morning.

19 ALJ REIF: Any objection?

20 MS. SCHMID: None.

21 MR. OLSEN: No objection.

22 ALJ REIF: They're received, Ms. Clark.

23 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

24 (The application and exhibits were received.)

25 MS. CLARK: Mr. Stephenson is available for

1 further questioning.

2 ALJ REIF: Thank you. Any questions for  
3 Mr. Clark?

4 MR. OLSEN: We have no questions.

5 MS. SCHMID: No questions.

6 EXAMINATION

7 BY ALJ REIF:

8 Q. Mr. Clark, I have a question.

9 A. Mr. Stephenson.

10 Q. I'm sorry. Mr. Stephenson.

11 A. No problem.

12 MS. CLARK: I'm happy to answer any questions  
13 you have.

14 ALJ REIF: I may have some for you as well.

15 Q. (By ALJ Reif) I'm terribly sorry,  
16 Mr. Stephenson.

17 A. It's all right.

18 Q. Mr. Stephenson, I'd like to ask you a  
19 question about the Exhibit 1.1, which has been revised  
20 to 1.1R.

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Specifically with respect to line 13.

23 A. Uh-huh (affirmative).

24 Q. The infrastructure rate adjustment revenue  
25 requirement calculation included there has been revised

1 to -- as you testified -- the 440 -- excuse me,  
2 \$440,200. And could you please clarify the accounting  
3 treatment for that amount?

4 A. Yes. So this is related to the DNG portion.  
5 And if you read Section 3.02 of the tariff, you would  
6 find that there's a \$40 penalty related to the DNG  
7 portion of the rate. That \$40 penalty was collected in  
8 March related to an interruption event that occurred on  
9 December 31 of 2014.

10 As a result of that collection, we are  
11 reducing the overall revenue requirement here in this  
12 docket that then flows through to the calculated rates  
13 for each rate schedule. And I'm not sure what  
14 particular accounting treatment you're referring to,  
15 but does that help clarify your --

16 Q. Let me ask you a follow-up question, and this  
17 should help.

18 Does that amount include interest between the  
19 date that you collected the amount, which I believe you  
20 said was March --

21 A. Right.

22 Q. -- and the date that it was reported?

23 A. No, there's no interest included.

24 Q. Thank you, Mr. Stephenson.

25 ALJ REIF: Are there any follow-up questions?

1 MS. CLARK: No. Thank you.

2 ALJ REIF: Thank you. Mr. Stephenson, thank  
3 you for your testimony today.

4 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

5 ALJ REIF: Ms. Schmid?

6 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. The Division would  
7 like to call Mr. Eric Orton as its witness. May  
8 Mr. Orton please be sworn.

9 ALJ REIF: Good morning, Mr. Orton.

10 THE WITNESS: Good morning.

11 --oOo--

12 ERIC ORTON,

13 having been first duly sworn to tell the  
14 truth, was examined and testified as follows:

15 EXAMINATION

16 BY MS. SCHMID:

17 Q. Good morning. Mr. Orton, please state your  
18 full name, employer, title, and business address for  
19 the record.

20 A. My name is Eric Orton. Was it business next  
21 or title?

22 Q. Employer.

23 A. I work for Division of Public Utilities. I'm  
24 a utility analyst.

25 Q. And address?

1 A. 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake.

2 Q. Thank you. Mr. Orton, in your connection --  
3 in connection with your employment as a utility  
4 analyst, have you participated on behalf of the  
5 Division in this docket?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Did you prepare or cause to be prepared and  
8 filed under your direction Action Request Response from  
9 the Division filed with the Commission on  
10 September 21st, 2015, with the subject "QGC Application  
11 to Change Base Distribution Non-Gas Rate and the  
12 Infrastructure Rate Adjustment," Docket No. 15-057-13?

13 A. Yes, I did.

14 Q. Do you adopt these filed -- this filed  
15 response as your testimony in this docket?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Do you have any changes to make?

18 A. I should point out that we sent the actual  
19 request response on September 21st, both a hard copy  
20 and electronic copy, to the Commission. The electronic  
21 copy was a draft.

22 And so on the next day, September 22nd, when  
23 we discovered that, we sent a corrected electronic  
24 copy. So now the hard copy and the electronic copy are  
25 the same, and that should be used as the reference for

1 the Action Request Response.

2 Q. Thank you for that clarification.

3 Is the Division's recommendation contained in  
4 this Action Request Response the same as it would be  
5 today?

6 A. Yes.

7 MS. SCHMID: The Division would like to move  
8 the admission of the previously identified Action  
9 Request Response.

10 ALJ REIF: Any objection?

11 MS. CLARK: No objection.

12 ALJ REIF: It is received.

13 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

14 (The Action Request Response was received.)

15 Q. (By Ms. Schmid) Mr. Orton, do you have a  
16 summary to propose?

17 A. Yes, I do.

18 Q. Please present.

19 A. Thanks. Addressing this docket, as a result  
20 of the preliminary review, the Division recommends that  
21 the Commission approve the proposed new rates and make  
22 them effective October 1, 2015, on an interim basis  
23 until the audit can be performed. Company is  
24 requesting \$5.9 million for about 1.2 million more than  
25 in today's rates, even with the corrections that we

1 heard this morning.

2 Also included is the implementation of the  
3 second step increase in the DNG rates that was approved  
4 in the last rate case and in the Depreciation Docket  
5 13-057-19. If this filing is approved, the typical GS  
6 customer will see increase in their annual rates of 58  
7 cents or .12 percent.

8 The Division offers that these new rates  
9 would be in the public interest. And if the Commission  
10 approved them on an interim basis, it would be  
11 appropriate until the Division performs its audit.  
12 Thank you.

13 MS. SCHMID: Mr. Orton is now available for  
14 questions.

15 MS. CLARK: The Company has no questions.

16 MR. OLSEN: The Office has no questions.

17 ALJ REIF: Mr. Orton, just a couple questions  
18 for you, please.

19 THE WITNESS: Sure.

20 EXAMINATION

21 BY ALJ REIF:

22 Q. I believe you had indicated that the rate  
23 adjustment would result in -- did you say a 58 cent --

24 A. 85 cent.

25 Q. 85 cent. Okay. And does that -- does that

1 amend your filing?

2 A. It does.

3 Q. Okay.

4 A. Thank you for -- yes.

5 Q. Okay. And is that based on the testimony  
6 from the Company's witness this morning?

7 A. It is, in our meeting this morning where we  
8 went through those numbers, yes.

9 Q. And the annual percentage for an average GS  
10 customer, does that -- is that impacted as well? Would  
11 that change based --

12 A. It's not to the penny. To the subpenny I  
13 guess it would be, but it's still 12 percent.

14 Q. 12 percent. Okay. Thank you very much for  
15 that clarification.

16 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, I believe that's  
17 .12 percent.

18 THE WITNESS: That's right. I'm sorry.  
19 That's correct. .12 percent.

20 ALJ REIF: Thank you, Mr. Olsen.

21 Q. (By ALJ Reif) Mr. Orton, are you familiar  
22 with provision -- it's Section 3.02 of the Company's  
23 tariff?

24 A. I am.

25 Q. Okay. That provision just for reference is

1 entitled "Periods of Interruption."

2 A. Uh-huh (affirmative).

3 Q. Then given your familiarity with that  
4 provision, you are likely aware that the provision  
5 addresses customers who fail to interrupt when called  
6 upon to do so?

7 A. That's right.

8 Q. Will the Division be looking at that issue  
9 and whether that provision has been applied?

10 A. We have done and are still doing that. We  
11 have discussed and we have some more discovery for the  
12 Company on that. Particularly, there were a few items  
13 there. One is the issue of charging the highest rate  
14 during the interruption to the customers who did not  
15 interrupt.

16 The other was moving their volumes that they  
17 did not interrupt to a firm basis. It mentions in  
18 there that they will be moved from interruptible to  
19 firm. That's not the customer itself. That refers to  
20 their usage over their -- what they nominated. So  
21 we've looked into those two issues, as well as one that  
22 we've discussed this morning. So that is not complete.  
23 It's still in process.

24 Q. When you say you're looking at it, is it your  
25 understanding that you're actually auditing it?

1 A. The audit doesn't happen until after the  
2 interim rates have begun.

3 Q. Okay. So we'll continue to look at it  
4 assuming interim rates go into effect?

5 A. Yes. That will be the in-depth audit.

6 Q. Just a couple more questions for you, please.

7 A. Uh-huh (affirmative).

8 Q. It's the Division's recommendation in this  
9 particular docket that rates go into effect on an  
10 interim basis. I was hoping to get clarification from  
11 you with respect to the infrastructure tracker rates --

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. -- and also the step 2 rate.

14 Is it your intention that the interim rates  
15 go into effect for both of those?

16 MS. SCHMID: May we have a moment?

17 ALJ REIF: Yes. Please. We'll be off the  
18 record.

19 (A discussion was had off the record.)

20 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

21 ALJ REIF: We're back on the record.

22 THE WITNESS: No. The DNG second step  
23 increase section should be final. I should have  
24 pointed that out in my memo. That was incorrect to  
25 imply that they should be interim as well. Only the

1 infrastructure tracker rate should be interim. The  
2 GDNG should be final. Thank you.

3 Q. (By ALJ Reif) Thank you for your  
4 clarification, Mr. Orton. That's all I have for you,  
5 Mr. Orton.

6 ALJ REIF: Are there any follow-up questions?

7 MS. SCHMID: Nothing.

8 MS. CLARK: No.

9 ALJ REIF: Mr. Orton, you may be excused.

10 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

11 ALJ REIF: Mr. Stephenson, I should also  
12 mention that you may be excused as well if you wish to  
13 do so.

14 MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you.

15 ALJ REIF: We'll go ahead and take the  
16 dockets in the order -- in consecutive order now  
17 beginning with the pass-through docket, the  
18 Docket 15-057-11.

19 And Ms. Clark, please.

20 MS. CLARK: Thank you. The Company calls  
21 Austin Summers.

22 ALJ REIF: Mr. Summers, good morning.

23 THE WITNESS: Good morning.

24 --oOo--

25 AUSTIN SUMMERS,

1 having been first duly sworn to tell the  
2 truth, was examined and testified as follows:

3 EXAMINATION

4 BY MS. CLARK:

5 **Q. Mr. Summers, can you state your full name and**  
6 **business address for the record, please?**

7 A. My name is Austin Summers, and my business  
8 address is 333 South State Street, Salt Lake City,  
9 Utah.

10 **Q. Can you tell us who employs you?**

11 A. I'm employed by Questar Gas Company as a  
12 supervisor of regulatory affairs.

13 **Q. And the application and accompanying exhibits**  
14 **in this docket, 15-057-11, were those prepared by you**  
15 **or under your direction?**

16 A. Yes, they were.

17 **Q. And do you have any corrections to those**  
18 **documents?**

19 A. I do. In the application, paragraph 16,  
20 that's page 8 of the application, there is a table  
21 there that shows the dockets that were filed  
22 concurrently with this docket.

23 And if you'll notice, all of those dockets  
24 show that they are 2014 dockets when they were actually  
25 filed in 2015. So all of those '14s need to be changed

1 to 15. Doesn't have any effect on rates. There's just  
2 a typo in the application.

3 **Q. And with the correction you've just**  
4 **described, would you adopt the application and these**  
5 **exhibits as your testimony today?**

6 A. Yes.

7 MS. CLARK: The Company would move for the  
8 admission of the application and accompanying exhibits  
9 with the correction described by Mr. Summers.

10 ALJ REIF: Any objection?

11 MS. SCHMID: No.

12 ALJ REIF: They're received, Ms. Clark.

13 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

14 (Application and exhibits were received.)

15 **Q. (By Ms. Clark) Mr. Summers, would you please**  
16 **summarize the relief the Company requests in this**  
17 **docket.**

18 A. Yes. In Pass-Through Docket No. 15-057-11,  
19 Questar Gas Company respectfully asks the Utah Public  
20 Service Commission for approval of \$546,053,866 in Utah  
21 gas cost coverage. This represents an overall decrease  
22 of \$17,625,000. The components of the decrease are,  
23 first, a decrease of \$18,148,000 in commodity costs  
24 and, second, an increase of \$524,000 in supplier  
25 non-gas costs.

1 This request includes an amortization of the  
2 commodity portion of the actual July 2015  
3 undercollected 191 balance of \$788,494, by a .723 cents  
4 per dekatherm debit surcharge.

5 The Company is also requesting to continue  
6 the amortization of undercollected SNG costs  
7 established in Docket No. 15-057-04 earlier this year.  
8 The combination of relatively fixed SNG costs and  
9 abnormally warm weather caused the SNG balance to be  
10 undercollected by \$15,358,000, which leads to the debit  
11 amortization charges that are shown on Exhibit 1.6,  
12 page 3.

13 The cost of purchased gas was developed using  
14 the forecasted gas prices from PIRA Energy Group and  
15 Cambridge Energy Research Associates. If this  
16 application is approved, a typical Utah GS customer  
17 using 80 dekatherms per year would see a decrease of  
18 \$12.94 or a total annual decrease of about  
19 1.83 percent.

20 Therefore, we request a decrease proposed in  
21 commodity rates and the increase proposed in SNG rates  
22 be allowed to go into effect October 1, 2015. And this  
23 concludes my summary.

24 MS. CLARK: Mr. Summers is available for  
25 cross-examination.

1 ALJ REIF: Any questions for Mr. Summers?

2 MS. SCHMID: No.

3 MR. OLSEN: No questions.

4 ALJ REIF: Thank you. Mr. Summers, I have a  
5 question for you, please.

6 THE WITNESS: Sure.

7 EXAMINATION

8 BY ALJ REIF:

9 Q. You cross-referenced the earlier docket, and  
10 I want to address that. That's Docket 15-057-04.  
11 That's the earlier docket that was heard in this -- in  
12 this -- regarding this pass-through matter.

13 And in that particular proceeding, the  
14 Division identified a legal verdict in a case involving  
15 the Pinedale field -- I'll refer to it as the Pinedale  
16 dispute.

17 And what I was hoping that you could clarify  
18 for me is whether the rates in this docket include the  
19 \$6 million that was referred to in the prior docket  
20 from -- from the Pinedale dispute?

21 A. So there's -- there are costs that are  
22 associated with that litigation that have been included  
23 in rates. So they are -- they have so far accrued --  
24 about \$8.2 million has been passed on to Questar Gas  
25 customers due to that case.

1 And they every month, they're adding an  
2 amount to the operator service fee, the monthly  
3 operator service fee. So every month that amount  
4 will -- will grow, the amount that they're charging to  
5 Questar Gas Company customers. So there are costs  
6 in -- in this pass-through that -- that are for that  
7 case.

8 **Q. Thank you, Mr. Summers.**

9 A. Uh-huh (affirmative).

10 ALJ REIF: Are there any follow-up questions  
11 for Mr. Summers?

12 MS. CLARK: No. Thank you.

13 ALJ REIF: Ms. Schmid?

14 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. The Division would  
15 like to call Mr. Douglas D. Wheelright as its witness.  
16 Could Mr. Wheelright please be sworn.

17 ALJ REIF: Good morning, Mr. Wheelright.

18 THE WITNESS: Good morning.

19 --oOo--

20 DOUGLAS D. WHEELRIGHT,  
21 having been first duly sworn to tell the  
22 truth, was examined and testified as follows:

23 EXAMINATION

24 BY MS. SCHMID:

25 **Q. Good morning. Could you please state your**

1 full name, employer, title, and business address for  
2 the record?

3 A. Yes. My name is Douglas D. Wheelright. I'm  
4 employed by the Division of Public Utilities as a  
5 technical consultant. My business address is 160 East  
6 300 South.

7 Q. Thank you.

8 In connection with your employment as a  
9 technical consultant, have you participated on behalf  
10 of the Division in this docket?

11 A. Yes, I have.

12 Q. Did you prepare or cause to be prepared and  
13 filed the Action Request Response dated September 21,  
14 2015, addressing dockets -- addressing this docket, the  
15 Pass-Through Application?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Do you have any changes to that Action  
18 Request Response?

19 A. One minor change. With the change that has  
20 been discussed this morning with the tracker filing, on  
21 the very last paragraph on page 12, it identifies the  
22 combined impact to customer rates, references a number  
23 of \$9.02. With a change in the tracker, that should be  
24 \$9.05. That's the only change.

25 Q. With that change, does the Division represent

1 that the memorandum filed on September 21st represents  
2 its position in this docket?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Do you adopt that as your testimony?

5 A. Yes, I do.

6 MS. SCHMID: Could we have one moment,  
7 please?

8 ALJ REIF: Yes. Be off the record.

9 (A discussion was had off the record.)

10 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. The Division would  
11 like to move for the admission of the Action Request  
12 Response dated September 21, 2015.

13 ALJ REIF: Any objection?

14 MS. CLARK: No.

15 ALJ REIF: It is received.

16 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

17 (Action Request Response was received.)

18 Q. (By Ms. Schmid) Mr. Wheelright, do you have a  
19 summary?

20 A. Yes, I do.

21 Q. Please proceed.

22 A. Thank you. Docket No. 15-057-11, known as  
23 the 191 Pass-Through Application, asks for Commission  
24 approval for a decrease of \$18.1 million in a commodity  
25 component and a \$.5 million increase in the supplier

1 non-gas component of natural gas rates for a net  
2 decrease of \$17.6 million.

3 Their primary reason for this request is a  
4 forecast decrease in the commodity cost for both cost  
5 of service production and the cost to purchase gas  
6 during the test period.

7 The cost of service gas from West Pro was  
8 projected to be 4 cents lower, while the purchased gas  
9 is projected to be 11 cents lower than the previous  
10 pass-through filing. It is anticipated that  
11 approximately 54 percent of the total gas requirement  
12 will be satisfied from West Pro cost of service gas  
13 production.

14 As part of its audit and review of the 191  
15 account, the Division is reviewing the calculations and  
16 costs associated with the West Pro production in the  
17 current and in previous 191 pass-through filings. The  
18 audit process is ongoing, and any finding will be  
19 presented to the Commission.

20 If this docket is approved individually, a  
21 typical GS customer will realize a decrease in their  
22 annual bill of \$12.94. The Division recommends that  
23 the proposed rate be approved on an interim basis until  
24 a full audit of the 191 account can be completed. That  
25 concludes my summary.

1 Q. Mr. Wheelright, were you present when the  
2 Questar witness and the Division witness addressed the  
3 change from 83 cents to 85 cents in the infrastructure  
4 docket?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. Could you please explain how that affects the  
7 \$9.02 and the other figure you referenced in this  
8 docket?

9 A. When we look at the combined effect of all  
10 the changing rates with the -- this docket, the CET,  
11 the low income, and the tracker, the combined impact is  
12 a change from \$9.02 to \$9.05.

13 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. That's the  
14 Division's case. Thank you.

15 ALJ REIF: Thank you, Ms. Schmid. Any  
16 questions?

17 MS. CLARK: Yeah, I do have some questions.

18 ALJ REIF: Please, Ms. Clark.

19 EXAMINATION

20 BY MS. CLARK:

21 Q. Just to clarify, Mr. Wheelright, you were  
22 speaking just a moment ago with Ms. Schmid about the  
23 prior testimony regarding the change in the tracker  
24 docket in the 11 -- the 13 Docket rather. Do you  
25 remember that?

1 A. Yes.

2 Q. And do you remember Mr. Stephenson indicating  
3 that that would be an increase of 3 cents if his  
4 correction were adopted? Do you remember him saying  
5 that?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. And if that 3 cents were an increase, would  
8 you agree that the net decrease would be \$8.99 rather  
9 than \$9.02?

10 A. I would like to go through that -- this  
11 information has come to us this morning. I'd like to  
12 take some time to make sure we have the numbers  
13 correct.

14 MS. CLARK: Off the record for a moment.

15 (A discussion was had off the record.)

16 ALJ REIF: Back on the record.

17 EXAMINATION

18 BY MS. SCHMID:

19 Q. Mr. Wheelright, while we were off the record,  
20 we looked at a couple of things. Do you have any  
21 comments to make regarding the \$9.02 figure on page 12  
22 of the Action Request Response?

23 A. Yes. That after discussions with the  
24 Company, we've determined that that number, the \$9.02,  
25 is an error. It goes the other direction, and the

1 combined effect would be \$8.99 instead of the \$9.02  
2 originally in that memo.

3 Q. With that knowledge, would you correct  
4 page 12 to read \$8.99 instead of \$9.02?

5 A. Yes, I would.

6 Q. Do you adopt that as your testimony today?

7 A. Yes, I do.

8 MS. SCHMID: The Division requests that the  
9 Action Request Response be -- this change be noted in  
10 the previously admitted Action Request Response.

11 ALJ REIF: Thank you, Ms. Schmid. We  
12 acknowledge the request.

13 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

14 ALJ REIF: Anything further?

15 MS. SCHMID: Nothing further.

16 ALJ REIF: Okay. Any further questions from  
17 you, Ms. Clark?

18 MS. CLARK: No. Thank you.

19 ALJ REIF: Mr. Olsen?

20 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, I wonder if this  
21 might be an appropriate time for Mr. Martinez to  
22 give -- just give a comprehensive statement we submit  
23 as testimony on these dockets.

24 ALJ REIF: Okay. I'll get to that in just a  
25 second. Let me address a couple things with --

1 actually, Mr. Summers, I'm going to circle back to you.

2 EXAMINATION

3 BY ALJ REIF:

4 Q. You might have addressed this, but we've had  
5 so much going on that I -- if I didn't register it, I  
6 apologize.

7 And with respect to the application that's  
8 pending in the 11 Docket, the 191 account application,  
9 is it the Company's position that the rates requested  
10 are just and reasonable and in the public interest?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Thank you. And -- thank you, sir. That's  
13 what I wanted to cover with you.

14 Mr. Wheelright, I'd like to address the same  
15 issue with you, please. You've testified actually to  
16 not only this docket but to some extent the earlier  
17 docket that we were addressing, the 13 Docket.

18 And are you in a position to give an  
19 assessment as to the just and reasonableness of the  
20 rates requested in both dockets?

21 A. Yes. The requested rates are just and  
22 reasonable in the public interest.

23 Q. Thank you. And for clarification, I believe  
24 you did say in your testimony that in this docket, the  
25 11 Docket, the Division's requesting that the rates be

1 on an interim basis?

2 A. Yes. That's correct.

3 Q. Thank you. I have one other bit of  
4 clarification I wanted to make with you, please. If  
5 you have a copy of the Division's submission that was  
6 filed on September 21, 2005, this is the Action Request  
7 Response.

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. If you would please turn to page 2.

10 MS. SCHMID: Pardon me. Was that 2015 rather  
11 than 2005?

12 ALJ REIF: Yes. I'm sorry. 2015.

13 Q. (By ALF Reif) And page 2, please. At the  
14 very bottom where it's -- the second to the last --  
15 yes, second to the last sentence, I want to be sure  
16 that from my understanding I'm fully tracking what you  
17 are referencing here.

18 There are a couple of acronyms which I think  
19 are used later in the report. And just to be sure, I  
20 wanted to ask you if the acronym CIRA, C-I-R-A, is what  
21 you were referring to later in the report as the  
22 Cambridge Energy Research Association?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. Okay. And PIRA is the PIRA Energy Group?

25 A. Yes. That's correct.

1 Q. Okay. Very good. Thank you for that  
2 clarification. I just wanted to be absolutely sure I  
3 was tracking that. Thank you for your testimony,  
4 Mr. Wheelright.

5 A. Thank you.

6 ALJ REIF: Mr. Olsen, you wanted to address  
7 all of the dockets; is that correct?

8 MR. OLSEN: Yes. If we may, Your Honor, we  
9 just have a comprehensive statement.

10 ALJ REIF: I think in that case, let's wait  
11 until the end.

12 MR. OLSEN: Okay.

13 ALJ REIF: That way if he's going to give a  
14 cumulative response, I think it would be best if we  
15 waited until the end.

16 MR. OLSEN: As you wish. Thank you.

17 ALJ REIF: Mr. Martinez, is that acceptable  
18 to you? Do you have a time limitation at all?

19 THE WITNESS: Not at all. If that works for  
20 you.

21 ALJ REIF: All right. Very good.

22 So let's move on to Docket 12, the CET  
23 application. Ms. Schmid, please proceed.

24 MS. CLARK: Thank you. Mr. Mendenhall will  
25 be speaking to this docket.

1 ALJ REIF: Mr. Mendenhall, you have been  
2 sworn in, have you not?

3 THE WITNESS: I don't think so.

4 --oOo--

5 KELLY MENDENHALL,  
6 having been first duly sworn to tell the  
7 truth, was examined and testified as follows:

8 EXAMINATION

9 BY MS. CLARK:

10 Q. Mr. Mendenhall, will you please state your  
11 full name, business address, and the identity of your  
12 employer?

13 A. Yeah. My name is Kelly B. Mendenhall. My  
14 business address is 333 South State Street, Salt Lake  
15 City, Utah. And Questar Gas is my employer.

16 Q. What position do you hold at Questar Gas?

17 A. I'm a general manager of regulatory affairs.

18 Q. And was the application in this matter  
19 prepared by you or under your direction?

20 A. Yes, it was.

21 Q. And do you have any corrections?

22 A. I do. These were discussed in the  
23 September 11th technical conference, but I just wanted  
24 to clarify them on the record here today. So if you'll  
25 turn to page 3 of the application in this docket, on

1 the first sentence begins, "The second factor."

2 That reads, "The second factor that increases  
3 the CMT amortization balance was the fact that the  
4 Company continued to," and it says, "collect money  
5 from." That should say "return money to."

6 And then the next, it says "April through  
7 June." That should say "April through May." And then  
8 it says, "Before the new amortization rate," that -- it  
9 says "return money to customers." It should say  
10 collected money from customers." And those are my  
11 changes.

12 **Q. With those changes included, would you adopt**  
13 **the contents of the application and its exhibits as**  
14 **your testimony today?**

15 A. Yes, I would.

16 MS. CLARK: The Company would move for the  
17 admission of the application and accompanying exhibits  
18 in this matter.

19 ALJ REIF: Any objection?

20 MS. SCHMID: No.

21 MR. OLSEN: No objection.

22 (Application and exhibits were received.)

23 **Q. (By Ms. Clark) Mr. Mendenhall, would you**  
24 **please summarize the relief the Company seeks in this**  
25 **matter.**

1           A.     In Docket 15-057-12, the application of  
2     Questar Gas Company to amortize the Conservation  
3     Enabling Tariff balancing account, the Company proposes  
4     to amortize the July 2015 undercollected balance of  
5     \$6.5 million. This undercollection amounts to a \$3.9  
6     million increase in the amount that is currently being  
7     collected through Conservation Enabling Tariff.

8                     This change in the rate will result in a  
9     \$3.27 or .5 -- half percent increase -- annual increase  
10    to the typical general service customer's bill. And  
11    that concludes my summary.

12                    MS. CLARK: Mr. Mendenhall is available for  
13    cross-examination?

14                    ALJ REIF: Any questions?

15                    MS. SCHMID: No.

16                    MR. OLSEN: No questions.

17                    ALJ REIF: Mr. Mendenhall, just a question or  
18    two for you, please.

19                    THE WITNESS: Sure.

20                                           EXAMINATION

21    BY ALJ REIF:

22            **Q.     Going back to what you were covering on**  
23    **page 3 from the technical conference.**

24            A.     Yes.

25            **Q.     I have a note in my document, and I just want**

1 to make sure that I have the right notation. And if  
2 not, then we'll just leave it as is.

3 The sentence that you were referring to that  
4 starts with, "The second factor"?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. The reference to "went into effect in July,"  
7 I have a notation that that was corrected to "in June."  
8 And I could be wrong.

9 A. That's correct. You're correct. It was  
10 June. Yes. June 1st.

11 Q. Okay.

12 A. Yeah.

13 Q. Thank you very much.

14 Okay. Let's turn to the paragraph just below  
15 that provision, and it's the weather normalization  
16 methodology.

17 A. Okay.

18 Q. And I -- I want to address something that you  
19 state there. It says -- I believe it's the third  
20 sentence down about -- just past the first comma, "The  
21 Company put a limit on the adjustment so that the  
22 actual degree days would be capped."

23 Could you please clarify whether Questar  
24 plans to report on the analysis of the weather  
25 normalization methodology?

1           A.    Yes.  In the last CET docket I believe in the  
2   spring, we were asked to -- to give an analysis of the  
3   impacts that the weather normalization had had.  And I  
4   guess this paragraph is our attempt to show the impacts  
5   of -- of the cap.  And if you look at the table below,  
6   you've got a bunch of numbers there.  But the -- I  
7   guess the important number with respect to the -- the  
8   methodology would be that last column.  It says  
9   "limiter effect."

10                So what that is showing is the impact that  
11   the cap had on the weather normalization calculation.  
12   And if -- if absent -- if we had not put a cap on  
13   during that period, you can see what the impact of the  
14   revenue would have been.  That's what that's trying to  
15   show.

16                So if -- if the Commission would like a  
17   further explanation or -- or data, we're happy to  
18   provide it.  But this is -- is kind of our summary of  
19   what happened.

20           **Q.    So would you be filing the clarification in**  
21 **your next CET filing?**

22           A.    If the -- if the Commission would like us to,  
23   we can.  As I mentioned in the -- this filing, we were  
24   not satisfied with the cap and the way it was working,  
25   so we removed it.

1           So since July, it's been back to the -- I  
2   guess the old methodology where there's no cap. We're  
3   just letting weather normalization be calculated.  
4   We've got some statisticians looking at better ways to  
5   refine it so that it's intending as -- it's working as  
6   we want it to.

7           The reason why we put the cap on in the first  
8   place, last -- the spring of last year, we had some  
9   anomalous weather where we had some really high heat --  
10   high days where there were -- really in March and  
11   February of 2014, we had some -- some really hot days,  
12   and then we had some I guess what I would consider to  
13   be more normal days.

14          What happened is those really hot days really  
15   messed up the way that the weather normalization was  
16   working, and we ended up with very large overcollected  
17   amounts because the -- the calculation wasn't working  
18   as intended.

19          And so what happened in the spring of this  
20   year is in an attempt to kind of put boundaries around  
21   that calculation, we -- we tried this methodology of  
22   the 15 percent warmer or colder. And as I mentioned,  
23   we weren't satisfied with the way it was working.

24          And so going forward, I think we would like  
25   to maybe refine the methodology, but at this point,

1 we're not planning on it. We're -- we're kind sticking  
2 with old methodology going forward. So if the  
3 Commission would like us to -- to present any possible  
4 changes we would make, we would be happy to do that.

5 **Q. Thank you, Mr. Mendenhall. I think what I**  
6 **was getting at was whether you would be reporting on**  
7 **the results of your analysis. And I think you said**  
8 **that you would. But is that -- is that correct?**

9 A. We could, yes. Yes, we will.

10 **Q. Okay.**

11 A. We will in the next -- in the next CET file  
12 if that's -- if that's --

13 **Q. You will if the Commission orders it?**

14 A. If the Commission asks -- would like us to,  
15 we would be happy to.

16 **Q. Okay.**

17 A. I guess -- yeah. So to answer -- sorry.  
18 That was probably a really long answer to a simple  
19 question. But right now we had planned on kind of  
20 leaving the things the way they are. If the Commission  
21 would like us to report of any changes in the future in  
22 future CET dockets, we would be happy to do that.

23 **Q. Okay. Thank you very much.**

24 **Mr. Mendenhall, just a couple more questions**  
25 **for you. I might be retracing steps, but I just want**

1 to make sure we have this on the record.

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. Is it the Company's position that the  
4 proposed rates in this docket are just and reasonable  
5 and in the public interest?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Thank you for your testimony.

8 A. Thank you.

9 ALJ REIF: Are there any follow-up questions  
10 for Mr. Mendenhall?

11 MS. CLARK: There are not. Thank you.

12 ALJ REIF: Thank you. We'll move on to our  
13 final docket, which is the 14 Docket.

14 Mr. Olsen, I haven't forgotten about you. So  
15 please just make sure you -- if you need to, waive me  
16 down.

17 MR. OLSEN: I'll pipe up.

18 MS. SCHMID: Could we go off the record for  
19 one more moment?

20 ALJ REIF: Yes.

21 (A discussion was had off the record.)

22 ALJ REIF: Ms. Schmid, my apologies. Let's  
23 continue with the -- we're back on the record. Let's  
24 continue with the 12 Docket. Please -- excuse me for  
25 cutting you and your witness off.

1 MS. SCHMID: The Division's witness in this  
2 docket is Mr. Wheelright. He has previously been  
3 sworn.

4 EXAMINATION

5 BY MS. SCHMID:

6 Q. Mr. Wheelright, do you incorporate your  
7 answers to my questions about full name, business  
8 address, title, and employer in this docket?

9 A. Yes, I do.

10 Q. Have you participated on behalf of the  
11 Division in this docket?

12 A. Yes, I have.

13 Q. Did you prepare or cause to be prepared and  
14 filed the Division's Action Request Response dated  
15 September 21, 2015, that addresses other dockets and  
16 includes the Division's responses and analysis of the  
17 12 Docket?

18 A. Yes, I did.

19 Q. Were you present in the hearing room when  
20 Mr. Mendenhall made some corrections to the  
21 application?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. Do any of those corrections affect the  
24 Division's Action Request Response insofar as they  
25 pertain to the 12 Docket?

1 A. They do not.

2 Q. If I were to ask the Division if its  
3 responses in the Action Request Response with regard to  
4 the 12 Docket were the same today as when written,  
5 would the Division's answer be that they were?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Do you adopt the Division's comments  
8 regarding the 12 Docket in that previously mentioned  
9 Action Request Response as your testimony today?

10 A. Yes, I do.

11 Q. Any question -- any corrections?

12 A. No.

13 MS. SCHMID: The Division requests that this  
14 memorandum be accepted into -- the Action Request  
15 Response be admitted into evidence. But I don't know  
16 if that's necessary because it already was. So --

17 ALJ REIF: Yes, Ms. Schmid. Thank you.

18 MS. SCHMID: I won't worry about that then.

19 Q. (By Ms. Schmid) Mr. Wheelright, do you have a  
20 summary to provide concerning the 12 Docket?

21 A. Yes, I do.

22 Q. Please proceed.

23 A. Thank you. Docket No. 15-057-12, known as  
24 the Conservation Enabling Tariff or CET, asks for  
25 Commission approval to amortize the July 2015

1 undercollected balance of \$6.5 million and adjust the  
2 credit component of the distribution non-gas or DNG  
3 rate.

4 In the previous filing under Docket  
5 No. 15-057-05, the Company was amortizing an  
6 undercollected balance of \$2.7 million. The Division  
7 has reviewed and supports the application and the  
8 calculations as submitted by the Company. If this  
9 docket is approved individually, a typical GS customer  
10 will realize an increase in their annual bill of \$3.27.  
11 The Division believes that the requested change is in  
12 the public interest and represents just and reasonable  
13 rates. That concludes my summary.

14 **Q. Just one clarification. Is the Division**  
15 **recommending that the 12 Docket be approved on an**  
16 **interim basis?**

17 A. Yes.

18 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. Mr. Wheelright is  
19 now available for questions.

20 ALJ REIF: Any questions for Mr. Wheelright?

21 MS. CLARK: No. Thank you.

22 ALJ REIF: Okay.

23 EXAMINATION

24 BY ALJ REIF:

25 **Q. Mr. Wheelright, just a couple of questions**

1 for you, please.

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. If you could please go to the paragraph that  
4 I was talking to Mr. Mendenhall about, it's  
5 paragraph 5, page 3 of the application, it addresses  
6 the new weather normalization methodology.

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. And in light of what's reported there, do you  
9 feel that that is consistent with what is set forth in  
10 the Company's tariff in Section 2.05?

11 A. Yes. As I understand it, the -- the limits  
12 were put in place because of kind of an anomaly within  
13 their own billing system and doesn't affect the -- the  
14 tariff itself.

15 Q. Thank you, Mr. Wheelright. Just to be  
16 absolutely sure, given the changes that Mr. Mendenhall  
17 outlined at the beginning of the hearing, I want to be  
18 absolutely certain that there's no effect on this  
19 docket with respect to the rate that's being requested  
20 and that's outlined in your report on page 11 where you  
21 talk about what the -- what the increase will be?

22 A. I don't believe there's any change to what  
23 we've reported.

24 Q. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Wheelright. You've  
25 also testified that you wish for this rate to be passed

1 on an interim basis; is that correct?

2 A. That's correct.

3 Q. Okay. And is it also the Division's  
4 testimony that the proposed rates are just and  
5 reasonable and in the public interest?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Thank you very much. Mr. Wheelright, that's  
8 all I have for you.

9 ALJ REIF: Is there any follow-up for  
10 Mr. Wheelright?

11 MS. SCHMID: No follow-up.

12 ALJ REIF: Okay. Very good. I think it's --  
13 we're safe to go on now. So let's go ahead and take  
14 the last docket, which is the 14 Docket.

15 And Ms. Clark, please?

16 MS. CLARK: Thank you. Mr. Mendenhall is  
17 prepared to speak to this docket as well. He's been  
18 previously sworn, and he's previously identified  
19 himself.

20 EXAMINATION

21 BY MS. CLARK:

22 Q. Mr. Mendenhall, was the application in this  
23 docket, 15-057-14, prepared by you or under your  
24 direction?

25 A. Yes, it was.

1 Q. Do you have any corrections to this one?

2 A. No, I do not.

3 Q. Would you adopt the application and the  
4 accompanying exhibits as your testimony today?

5 A. Yes.

6 MS. CLARK: The Company would move for the  
7 admission of the application and the accompanying  
8 exhibits.

9 ALJ REIF: Any objection?

10 MS. SCHMID: No.

11 ALJ REIF: They're received.

12 (Application and exhibits were received.)

13 Q. (By Ms. Clark) Mr. Mendenhall, can you  
14 summarize the relief the Company seeks in this  
15 application?

16 A. Sure. In Docket No. 15-05714, the  
17 application of Questar Gas Company for a tariff change  
18 and adjustment to the Low Income Assistance Energy  
19 Rate, Questar is proposing to make changes to the  
20 energy assistance rate so that the Company is  
21 collecting the Commission-approved \$1.5 million.

22 And the Company is also proposing to maintain  
23 the annual energy assistance credit at \$61.50 per  
24 qualifying customer per year. The proposed change in  
25 rates will result in a 14 cent increase in the typical

1 customer's annual bill, and the Company believes that  
2 these rates are just and reasonable and in the public  
3 interest.

4 **Q. Mr. Mendenhall, can you speak to the**  
5 **cumulative effect that would occur if all four of the**  
6 **dockets addressed today were approved?**

7 A. Yes. So if -- if the docket in 11, the  
8 Pass-Through Docket in 15-057-11 and the Infrastructure  
9 Replacement Docket 15-057-13 and the CET  
10 Docket 15-057-12 are approved along with this docket,  
11 it will be an overall decrease to the typical general  
12 service customer of about \$8.99 per year or  
13 1.3 percent. And I'm happy to -- I know we've kind of  
14 been all over the place -- summarize how we get to  
15 \$8.99 if that would be helpful.

16 ALJ REIF: Ms. Clark, what would be --

17 MS. CLARK: I would be happy to pose that as  
18 a question.

19 **Q. (By Ms. Clark) Could you please walk us**  
20 **through how that cumulative change would occur given**  
21 **the changes Mr. Stephenson proposed?**

22 A. Yes. So we have the --

23 ALJ REIF: Ms. Clark, if you could also ask  
24 Mr. -- if Mr. Mendenhall would be willing to address  
25 each of the dockets and how they are changed, if at

1 all, just to make sure because there has been a bit of  
2 confusion.

3 THE WITNESS: Yes.

4 Q. (By Ms. Clark) In your summary, if you can  
5 talk about which dockets are an increase and decrease  
6 and how they all net out in the end.

7 MS. CLARK: Is that --

8 ALJ REIF: Thank you.

9 THE WITNESS: So the -- I will do my best  
10 here on the fly. So the 11 -- so we have four dockets.  
11 We have the pass-through docket in 11, the CET docket  
12 in 12, and the energy assistance docket in 14.

13 Those are all unchanged from where they were  
14 originally filed. I believe the Pass-Through Docket  
15 was a decrease. The CET was an increase. And the  
16 energy assistance was a small increase. So those are  
17 all unchanged as filed.

18 Now let's talk about the infrastructure  
19 tracker in Docket 13. So what happened -- and maybe  
20 just to make it clear for the record, I will walk  
21 through kind of a summary of how we get to the combined  
22 effect.

23 But if -- if you turn to Exhibit 1.1R that  
24 Mr. Stephenson handed out, and he mentioned this  
25 earlier, but I just want to kind of follow it through,

1 on line 13, that credit is now \$440,200. In the  
2 original filing, it was \$497,638. So that credit is  
3 smaller. So when you have a smaller credit, the amount  
4 of revenue that you're going to collect is going to be  
5 higher.

6 If you look down at line 15, you'll see that  
7 line 15 is \$5.3 million. And before when we filed it,  
8 it was \$5,256,840. So we are seeing a \$57,438 increase  
9 because of the proposal that's on the table from  
10 Mr. Stephenson.

11 So what happens when the revenue goes up,  
12 that flows through to the rates. And the typical  
13 customer is calculated on a general service rate. So  
14 what happens is the revenue requirement went up, so now  
15 the general service rates go up slightly.

16 And what that does to the -- to the typical  
17 bill calculation in this filing can be found in  
18 Exhibit 1.6R. If we compare that to Exhibit 1.6 that  
19 was originally filed, originally it was an 82 cent  
20 increase. Now we were at an 85 cent increase. So we  
21 have a 3 cent increase that came about because of the  
22 changes that have been proposed by Mr. Stephenson  
23 today.

24 So now if we look at all of the dockets  
25 cumulatively, when we originally filed the overall

1 decrease, this would have been the overall decrease to  
2 the typical general service customer, was \$9.02. But  
3 now that we're going to increase that by 3 cents  
4 because of the infrastructure tracker docket, it goes  
5 from a \$9.02 decrease to an \$8.99 decrease. And that's  
6 how we get to the final number that we've talked about  
7 today. And that concludes my summary.

8 MS. CLARK: I don't have any further  
9 questions for Mr. Mendenhall. He's available for  
10 questions.

11 ALJ REIF: Any questions for Mr. Mendenhall?

12 MS. SCHMID: No.

13 MR. OLSEN: No.

14 EXAMINATION

15 BY ALJ REIF:

16 Q. Mr. Mendenhall, thank you very much for that  
17 clarification. I really appreciate that.

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. I know that will be helpful to the  
20 Commission. Just to circle back to the \$8.99 decrease.

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Can you tell me again what approximately that  
23 is for the average GS customer annually? What that --

24 A. Total dollar amount?

25 Q. Yes, please.

1           A.    Let's see. May have to ask one of my friends  
2   to help me here.

3           MS. SCHMID: Could we go off the record for  
4   just one moment?

5           (A discussion was had off the record.)

6           ALJ REIF: We're back on the record.

7           THE WITNESS: Okay. So to answer the  
8   question of what the overall decrease percentage would  
9   be, if we compare those two exhibits again that  
10   Mr. Stephenson had in his filing, Exhibit 1.6 that was  
11   originally filed, it was an 82 cent increase. And the  
12   percent change was .12 percent.

13           If you look at the revised version of 1.6,  
14   it's an 85 cent decrease, but it's still .12 percent.  
15   So the overall percent increase does not change, so  
16   it's still a 1.28 percent decrease. Only the dollars  
17   change.

18           **Q.    (By ALJ Reif) Thank you, Mr. Mendenhall.**

19           A.    You're welcome.

20           **Q.    Mr. Mendenhall, I have just a couple other**  
21 **things I wanted to cover with you, please.**

22           A.    Okay.

23           **Q.    And this regards the 14 Docket. And if you**  
24 **could please turn to Exhibit 1.2.**

25           A.    Okay.

1 Q. And in particular, I want to address  
2 footnote 2 where it says, "The forecasted dekatherms  
3 for the test period (October 2015-November 2016)," is  
4 there possibly a typo there?

5 A. I believe there is, yes. That should --  
6 typically our test periods are 12 months. And so I  
7 believe if we're beginning in October, this should be  
8 October 2015 through September 2016.

9 Q. Okay. Thank you for that clarification.

10 A. Yeah.

11 Q. Just one other follow-up question, please,  
12 regarding the last part of that footnote where you  
13 refer to "heat qualified customers."

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Does "heat qualified customers" mean  
16 qualified customers receiving energy assistance?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Thank you. Thank you for your testimony,  
19 Mr. Mendenhall. And also thank you also for the  
20 clarification on all of the dockets. That was very  
21 helpful.

22 ALJ REIF: Ms. Schmid?

23 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. The Division's  
24 witness in 14 Docket is Mr. Wheelright. He has  
25 previously been identified. And the memorandum that

1 contains the Division's response has been previously  
2 identified -- previously admitted into evidence.

3 EXAMINATION

4 BY MS. SCHMID:

5 Q. Mr. Wheelright, were you present when  
6 Mr. Mendenhall made his correction to footnote 2 on  
7 Exhibit 1.2 of this docket?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. Does that change in any way the Division's  
10 analysis or conclusions in this docket?

11 A. It does not.

12 Q. Do you have a summary to present on this  
13 docket?

14 A. Yes, I do.

15 Q. Thank you.

16 A. Docket No. 15-057-14 is a request to adjust  
17 the low income assistance component of the DNG rate  
18 while maintaining the current annual assistance amount  
19 available to qualified customers at \$61.50.

20 The Division has reviewed and supports the  
21 application and calculations as submitted by the  
22 Company. If this docket is approved individually, a  
23 typical GS customer will realize an increase of 14  
24 cents in their annual bill.

25 Let me provide now a summary of all four

1 dockets. In summary, the Division supports and  
2 recommends approval of the rate changes requested in  
3 all four of the dockets discussed today. This includes  
4 the three dockets that I have mentioned, along with  
5 Docket No. 15-057-13 summarized by Mr. Orton from the  
6 Division.

7           The Division would recommend approval on an  
8 interim basis of Docket Nos. 15-057-11, 12, and 13 with  
9 an effective date of October 1, 2015. The interim  
10 approval will allow additional time for the Division to  
11 complete an audit of the individual entries in the  
12 respective accounts.

13           Docket No. 15-057-14, the Low Income Energy  
14 Assistance Application, does not require an audit and  
15 does not need interim approval. While each docket has  
16 been presented independently, the Division has  
17 completed a summary of the combined impact of the  
18 proposed changes on individual customer rates.

19           If all four dockets are approved, a typical  
20 GS customer will see a net decrease of approximately  
21 \$8.99 per year or 1.3 percent decrease from the rates  
22 currently in effect. The Division believes that the  
23 requested changes are in the public interest and  
24 represent just and reasonable rates. That concludes my  
25 summary.

1 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. Mr. Wheelright is  
2 now available for questions.

3 ALJ REIF: Any questions for Mr. Wheelright?

4 MR. OLSEN: No questions.

5 ALJ REIF: Mr. Wheelright, just a couple of  
6 questions for you, please.

7 EXAMINATION

8 BY ALJ REIF:

9 Q. I want to circle back to the testimony that  
10 we received from Mr. Orton on the 13 Docket that we  
11 started with. Just to be sure that we're all on the  
12 same page regarding what's interim and what's not,  
13 Mr. Orton made a clarification regarding the -- part of  
14 what was being proposed is going to be interim and part  
15 of it was proposed as being final pursuant to the  
16 earlier docket?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. And specifically it was regarding the  
19 implementation of the second step?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. He requested that that be amended to be final  
22 as opposed to the rest of the docket being the interim.  
23 I just want to make sure you're in agreement with that?

24 A. Yes, I would agree with that.

25 Q. Okay. Great. That does it. Thank you very

1 much for your testimony and also for your summary. It  
2 was very helpful.

3 A. Thank you.

4 ALJ REIF: Mr. Olsen?

5 MR. OLSEN: Thank you. The Office would call  
6 Danny Martinez, please. He needs to be sworn.

7 ALJ REIF: Good morning, Mr. Martinez.

8 THE WITNESS: Good morning.

9 --oOo--

10 DANNY MARTINEZ,  
11 having been first duly sworn to tell the  
12 truth, was examined and testified as follows:

13 EXAMINATION

14 BY MR. OLSEN:

15 Q. Mr. Martinez, could you state your name for  
16 the record, please?

17 A. My name is Danny Martinez. I'm a utility  
18 analyst for the Office of Consumer Services. My  
19 business address is 160 East 300 South in Salt Lake  
20 City, Utah.

21 Q. Thank you. And as part of your duties, did  
22 you have the opportunity to review the dockets  
23 submitted by the Company in 15-057-11, 12, 13, and 14?

24 A. Yes, I did.

25 Q. And did you likewise participate in the

1 review of the modification on 13 that was submitted  
2 earlier today?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Do you have any summary or statement you'd  
5 like to make at this time?

6 A. Yes. The Office reviewed Questar Gas  
7 Company's combined -- combined applications comprising  
8 Dockets 15-057-11, 12, 13, and the low income docket in  
9 15-057-14. The Office also participated in the  
10 technical conference noticed in these dockets.

11 Upon review of the Company's application and  
12 information from the technical conference, the Office  
13 did not find anything that raised concerns about the  
14 Company's applications other than those that were  
15 corrected already today.

16 The -- with the corrections already cited,  
17 the Company -- excuse me -- the Office -- the  
18 Company -- the Office proposed that the Company's  
19 application be approved, and that the results of the  
20 application result in just and reasonable rates and are  
21 in the public interest.

22 Q. Does that conclude your statement?

23 A. Yes.

24 MR. OLSEN: Mr. Martinez is available for  
25 questions.

1 ALJ REIF: Any questions for Mr. Martinez?

2 MS. CLARK: No thank you.

3 MS. SCHMID: No.

4 ALJ REIF: Mr. Martinez just a few follow-up  
5 questions for you, please.

6 THE WITNESS: Sure.

7 EXAMINATION

8 BY ALJ REIF:

9 Q. Some of this is going to be familiar because  
10 I've asked these questions previously, particularly of  
11 the Division.

12 And I'd like to ask you regarding the CET  
13 application, which is the 12 Docket, in that particular  
14 docket, the -- there's a reference to the weather  
15 normalization reporting. Are you familiar with that?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. It's -- it's in paragraph 5 of the Company's  
18 application?

19 A. Right.

20 Q. And my question is does the weather  
21 normalization adjustment that's noted there, does that  
22 description adequately comply with the Section 2.05 of  
23 the Questar tariff?

24 A. I believe it does, yes.

25 Q. Okay. Thank you.

1 A. Uh-huh (affirmative).

2 Q. Those are all my questions, Mr. Martinez.

3 Thank you very much for your testimony and your  
4 summary. Appreciate it very much, and you being here  
5 today along with your counsel.

6 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

7 ALJ REIF: Ms. Schmid?

8 MS. CLARK: Thank you. The Company --  
9 provided that everyone is concluded with the testimony,  
10 the Company would modify its request for relief, if  
11 you'd entertain a motion?

12 ALJ REIF: Sure. Go ahead.

13 MS. CLARK: Thank you. The Company would  
14 move for the approval of all the applications as  
15 recommended and set forth by each witness today and  
16 would request that the Commission allow the Company to  
17 submit cumulative tariff sheets by the close of  
18 business tomorrow in accordance with the rules and  
19 practice before the Commission, such that the Division  
20 could then review those sheets for Commission approval.

21 ALJ REIF: Just as a clarification, would the  
22 Division and the Office have review of them before  
23 they're filed?

24 MS. CLARK: The Company's intention -- and I  
25 guess Mr. Mendenhall can speak to the typical practice,

1 we would certainly collaborate with those two entities  
2 to ensure that we have correct tariff sheets that  
3 reflect the corrections that were made on the record  
4 today. I believe as a matter of procedure the Division  
5 then has the opportunity to review them again after  
6 they've been filed.

7 ALJ REIF: Okay.

8 MS. CLARK: But our intention is definitely  
9 to ensure that they are correct and accurate before  
10 they are submitted. I wonder if we could go off the  
11 record briefly and discuss this?

12 ALJ REIF: Yes.

13 MS. SCHMID: Could you also clarify that that  
14 was Ms. Clark, not Ms. Schmid?

15 MS. CLARK: Yes.

16 MS. SCHMID: Again, it's about that kind of a  
17 morning.

18 ALJ REIF: Sorry. Did I say Schmid?

19 MS. SCHMID: You did.

20 MS. CLARK: She did.

21 ALJ REIF: Ms. Clark, I apologize. I think I  
22 may have called you Ms. Schmid. I'm going to have to  
23 make a request for nameplates I think or something  
24 because -- in any event, we'll be off the record for  
25 just a moment. My apologies.

1 (Recess taken at 10:21, resuming at 10:24.)

2 MS. CLARK: If I may rephrase my motion. The  
3 Company would move for the approval of all four dockets  
4 as presented by the witness today in a bench ruling  
5 with the caveat that by close of business tomorrow,  
6 September 25th, 2015, the Company would submit tariff  
7 sheets that reflect the changes that were also proposed  
8 today.

9 The Company would intend that those would be  
10 accurate and in accord with the testimony you've heard  
11 today from all of the parties. And the Division would  
12 certainly have an opportunity to review -- excuse me --  
13 review them both before and after such filing.

14 ALJ REIF: Thank you, Ms. Clark.

15 MS. SCHMID: The Division supports the  
16 Company's motion.

17 MR. OLSEN: As does the Office.

18 ALJ REIF: Thank you. Is there anything else  
19 to come before the Commission before we adjourn in the  
20 interim before the public witness hearing?

21 MS. CLARK: No, ma'am. Thank you.

22 ALJ REIF: Okay. So we'll take the motion  
23 under consideration and have a response at the public  
24 witness hearing. So we will be adjourned until such  
25 time. And see you all here back at noon.

1 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

2 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

3 MR. OLSEN: Thank you.

4 (Recess taken at 10:25, resuming at 12:01.)

5 ALJ REIF: We will commence with the hearing  
6 from earlier today, that hearing being the rate hearing  
7 concerning Dockets 15-057-11, 12, 13, and 14. When we  
8 last met, we -- just before adjourning, Ms. Clark  
9 requested a motion to file a tariff no later than by  
10 the end of the day tomorrow to reflect the changes that  
11 were addressed in this docket.

12 And before I get to that, just to clarify for  
13 the record for this portion of the hearing, I've  
14 already made my introduction. But just for record, I  
15 would like to make sure we have the appearances on  
16 file.

17 Ms. Clark, would you please start for us?

18 MS. CLARK: Yeah. My name is Jenniffer  
19 Nelson Clark. I'm an attorney for Questar Gas Company.  
20 And I have three Company representatives with me, Kelly  
21 Mendenhall, Jordan Stevenson, and Austin Summers.

22 ALJ REIF: Ms. Schmid?

23 MS. SCHMID: Patricia E. Schmid with the  
24 Attorney General's Office on behalf of the Division of  
25 Public Utilities with the Division's witness, Douglas

1 D. Wheelright.

2 MR. MARTINEZ: I'm Dan Martinez representing  
3 the Office of Consumer Services.

4 ALJ REIF: Thank you. What I'd like to do at  
5 this point, unless there are questions or concerns that  
6 you would like to raise with the Commission, I -- I'm  
7 prepared to provide a response to the motion that's  
8 been raised, as well as response to the request for a  
9 bench ruling in this matter.

10 As it pertains to the motion to file an  
11 amended tariff, the Commission grants Questar motion to  
12 filed its amended tariff no later than tomorrow by the  
13 end of the business day.

14 Having said that, it would be helpful to know  
15 based on the request that is pending before the  
16 Commission to have an effective date on the -- on the  
17 proposed tariff changes to be effective October 1,  
18 2015, whether the Division and the Office feels that  
19 they can expeditiously review that tariff sheet and  
20 make any recommendation so that the Commission can get  
21 an order out that reflects whatever change is going to  
22 be discussed here shortly on or before the 1st of  
23 October.

24 Ms. Schmid?

25 MS. SCHMID: The Division can review the

1 to-be filed tariff sheets and provide timely input.

2 ALJ REIF: Okay. And might you be able to do  
3 that, say, in -- I think we were hoping for three days?  
4 Okay.

5 MS. SCHMID: The Division can do that within  
6 three days. Thank you.

7 ALJ REIF: Mr. Martinez?

8 MR. MARTINEZ: Yes.

9 ALJ REIF: Does that work for you?

10 MR. MARTINEZ: Yeah. It will work for us.  
11 We probably won't have -- if we do have comments, we  
12 will definitely be able to meet that deadline. Most  
13 likely we won't have anything.

14 ALJ REIF: I appreciate that. I just want to  
15 make sure we don't get ourselves in a bind with the  
16 deadline.

17 So we'll move on next to the request for the  
18 bench ruling. And I will address these in sequential  
19 order beginning with the 11 Docket. Docket 15-057-11,  
20 based on the testimony submitted in this docket, the  
21 Commission finds the rates requested are just and  
22 reasonable and in the public interest. And the  
23 Commission approves them on an interim basis effective  
24 October 1, 2015, subject to review of the Division's  
25 audit.

1           The Commission concludes that approving the  
2 application on an interim basis effective October 1,  
3 2015, subject to review of the Division's audit is  
4 consistent with the Utah Code Annotated Sections 54-1-3  
5 and 54-7-12(4)(a). The Commission has approved and  
6 confirmed this verbal bench ruling, which will be  
7 subsequently memorialized in a written order.

8           Docket 15-057-12. Based on the testimony  
9 submitted in this docket, the Commission finds the  
10 rates requested are just and reasonable and in the  
11 public interest. And the Commission approves them on  
12 an interim basis effective October 1, 2015, subject to  
13 review of the Division's audit.

14           The Commission concludes that approving the  
15 application on an interim basis effective October 1,  
16 2015, subject to review of the Division's audit is  
17 consistent with Utah Code Annotated Sections 54-1-3 and  
18 57-12(4)(a). The Commission has approved and confirmed  
19 this verbal bench ruling, which will be subsequently  
20 memorialized in a written order.

21           With respect to Docket No. 15-057-13, I wish  
22 to address that in two parts because there's part of  
23 the order that has been requested to be on an interim  
24 basis. And regarding the infrastructure tracker rates,  
25 the Commission finds the rates requested are just and

1 reasonable and in the public interest. And the  
2 Commission approves them on an interim basis effective  
3 October 1, 2015, subject to review of the Division's  
4 audit.

5 The Commission concludes that approving the  
6 infrastructure tracker rate on an interim basis  
7 effective October 1, 2015, subject to a review of the  
8 Division's audit is consistent with Utah Code Annotated  
9 Sections 54-1-3 and 54-7-12(4)(a). The Commission has  
10 approved and confirmed this verbal bench ruling, which  
11 will be subsequently memorialized in a written order.

12 Regarding the implementation of a second step  
13 increase from Questar's 2014 general rate case, those  
14 final rates were already addressed by the Commission in  
15 Dockets 13-057-05 and updated in 13-057-19. With  
16 respect to Docket No. 15-057-14, these rates will be  
17 addressed in a subsequent order as final rates.

18 That concludes the Commission's response to  
19 the pending dockets. And unless you have questions,  
20 we'll be adjourned.

21 MS. CLARK: No questions. Thank you.

22 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

23 ALJ REIF: Thank you. Have a nice afternoon.

24 (The proceedings concluded at 12:17 p.m.)

25

1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

2 STATE OF UTAH )

3 COUNTY OF UTAH )

4

5 I, Daren S. Bloxham, a Notary Public and  
6 Certified Shorthand Reporter, Registered Professional  
7 Reporter, hereby certify:

8 THAT the foregoing proceedings were taken  
9 before me at the time and place set forth in the  
10 caption hereof; that the proceedings were taken down by  
11 me in shorthand and thereafter my notes were  
12 transcribed through computer-aided transcription; and  
13 the foregoing transcript constitutes a full, true, and  
14 accurate record of such testimony adduced and oral  
15 proceedings had, and of the whole thereof.

16 I have subscribed my name on this 4th day of  
17 October, 2015.

18

19



20 Daren S. Bloxham  
Registered Professional Reporter #335

21

22

23

24

25

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| <b>Exhibits</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 | <b>\$8.2</b> 25:24                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               | <b>11th</b> 36:23                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               | <b>50:9</b> 57:5                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         | <b>53:3</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         |
| <b>EXHIBIT-ATTAC</b> 3:17                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       | <b>\$8.99</b> 31:8<br>32:1,4 50:12,<br>15 53:5,20<br>57:21                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       | <b>12</b> 4:7 5:4 11:9<br>17:7 18:13,14,<br>17,19 27:21<br>31:21 32:4<br>35:22 43:24<br>44:17,25 45:4,<br>8,20 46:15<br>51:12 54:12,14<br>55:6 57:8<br>59:23 60:8<br>61:13                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      | <b>15-057-14</b><br>48:23 56:16<br>57:13 60:9<br><b>15-05714</b> 49:16<br><b>16</b> 22:19<br><b>160</b> 15:1 27:5<br>59:19<br><b>191</b> 24:3 28:23<br>29:14,17,24<br>33:8<br><b>1st</b> 39:10                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           | <b>3.02</b> 8:2,10<br>13:5 18:22<br><b>300</b> 15:1 27:6<br>59:19<br><b>31</b> 10:9 13:9<br><b>333</b> 6:23 22:8<br>36:14                                                                                                                                                                                                           |
| <b>\$</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       | <b>\$9.02</b> 27:23<br>30:7,12 31:9,<br>21,24 32:1,4<br>53:2,5<br><b>\$9.05</b> 27:24<br>30:12                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   | <b>13</b> 4:7 5:1 6:6<br>8:4,7,14 9:11<br>12:22 30:24<br>33:17 51:19<br>52:1 57:8<br>58:10 59:23<br>60:1,8<br><b>13-057-05</b> 11:4<br><b>13-057-19</b> 17:5<br><b>13-0570-19</b><br>11:5<br><b>14</b> 4:7 5:6 7:24<br>8:4 43:13<br>48:14 49:25<br>51:12 54:23<br>55:24 56:23<br>59:23<br><b>14s</b> 22:25<br><b>14th</b> 9:17<br><b>15</b> 23:1 41:22<br>52:6,7<br><b>15-057-04</b> 24:7<br>25:10<br><b>15-057-05</b> 46:5<br><b>15-057-11</b> 4:7<br>21:18 22:14<br>23:18 28:22<br>50:8 57:8<br>59:23 60:8<br><b>15-057-12</b> 38:1<br>45:23 50:10<br><b>15-057-13</b> 5:14<br>7:5 10:6 15:12 | <b>2</b> 11:2 20:13<br>34:9,13 55:2<br>56:6<br><b>2.05</b> 47:10<br>61:22<br><b>2005</b> 34:6,11<br><b>2014</b> 13:9<br>22:24 41:11<br><b>2015</b> 10:9,18<br>11:14,16 15:10<br>16:22 22:25<br>24:2,22 27:14<br>28:12 34:10,12<br>38:4 44:15<br>45:25 55:8<br>57:9<br><b>2015-november</b><br>55:3<br><b>2016</b> 55:3,8<br><b>21</b> 27:13 28:12<br>34:6 44:15<br><b>21st</b> 15:10,19<br>28:1<br><b>22nd</b> 15:22<br><b>2nd</b> 11:14 | <b>4</b> 7:23 9:24<br>11:16 29:8<br><b>440</b> 13:1                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 |
| <b>\$5</b> 28:25<br><b>\$1.5</b> 49:21<br><b>\$1.8</b> 10:13<br><b>\$12.94</b> 24:18<br>29:22<br><b>\$15,358,000</b><br>24:10<br><b>\$17,625,000</b><br>23:22<br><b>\$17.6</b> 29:2<br><b>\$18,148,000</b><br>23:23<br><b>\$18.1</b> 28:24<br><b>\$2.7</b> 46:6<br><b>\$3.27</b> 38:9<br>46:10<br><b>\$3.9</b> 38:5<br><b>\$40</b> 13:6,7<br><b>\$440,200</b> 8:14<br>13:2 52:1<br><b>\$497,638</b> 52:2<br><b>\$5,256,840</b><br>52:8<br><b>\$5.3</b> 9:7,8<br>10:22 52:7<br><b>\$5.9</b> 10:15,16<br>16:24<br><b>\$524,000</b> 23:24<br><b>\$546,053,866</b><br>23:20<br><b>\$57,438</b> 8:13<br>52:8<br><b>\$6</b> 25:19<br><b>\$6.5</b> 38:5 46:1<br><b>\$61.50</b> 49:23<br>56:19<br><b>\$788,494</b> 24:3 | -<br><b>--ooo--</b> 4:2 6:15<br>14:11 21:24<br>26:19 36:4<br>59:9<br><b>1</b><br><b>1</b> 10:20 16:22<br>24:22 57:9<br><b>1.1</b> 7:22 8:23<br>12:19<br><b>1.1R</b> 9:24<br>12:20 51:23<br><b>1.2</b> 8:24 16:24<br>54:24 56:7<br><b>1.28</b> 54:16<br><b>1.2R</b> 9:25<br><b>1.3</b> 9:5 50:13<br>57:21<br><b>1.3R</b> 9:25<br><b>1.5</b> 9:7<br><b>1.5R</b> 9:25<br><b>1.6</b> 9:10 24:11<br>52:18 54:10,13<br><b>1.6R</b> 10:1<br>52:18<br><b>1.83</b> 24:19<br><b>11</b> 5:7 29:9<br>30:24 33:8,25<br>47:20 50:7<br>51:10,11 | <b>3</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        | <b>3</b> 24:12 31:3,7<br>36:25 38:23<br>47:5 52:21                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       | <b>5</b> 38:9 47:5<br>61:17<br><b>54</b> 29:11<br><b>58</b> 17:6,23<br><b>6</b><br><b>6</b> 11:7<br><b>7</b><br><b>723</b> 24:3<br><b>8</b><br><b>8</b> 9:6 22:20<br><b>80</b> 10:25 24:17<br><b>82</b> 9:12 52:19<br>54:11<br><b>83</b> 30:3<br><b>85</b> 9:11 11:9<br>17:24,25 30:3<br>52:20 54:14<br><b>9</b><br><b>91</b> 10:24 |

| A                                                                                   | additional                                                                        | affects                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        | analyst                                                                                           |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| abnormally<br>24:9                                                                  | 57:10                                                                             | 30:6                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           | 7:4                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| absent 40:12                                                                        | address 6:22                                                                      | affirmative                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    | 14:24 15:4                                                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| absolutely<br>35:2 47:16,18                                                         | 14:18,25 22:6,<br>8 25:10 27:1,5                                                  | 12:23 19:2                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     | 59:18                                                                                             |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| acceptable<br>35:17                                                                 | 32:25 33:14                                                                       | 20:7 26:9 62:1                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 | annual 9:11                                                                                       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| accepted<br>45:14                                                                   | 35:6 36:11,14                                                                     | after 8:1,9                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    | 10:13,21 17:6                                                                                     |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| accompanying<br>22:13 23:8                                                          | 39:18 44:8                                                                        | 10:21 20:1                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     | 18:9 24:18                                                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 37:17 49:4,7                                                                        | 50:24 55:1                                                                        | 31:23 63:5                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     | 29:22 38:9                                                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| accordance<br>62:18                                                                 | 59:19                                                                             | again 53:22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    | 46:10 49:23                                                                                       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| account 4:13                                                                        | addressed                                                                         | 54:9 63:5,16                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   | 50:1 56:18,24                                                                                     |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 29:15,24 33:8                                                                       | 30:2 33:4 50:6                                                                    | ago 30:22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      | annually 53:23                                                                                    |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 38:3                                                                                | addresses                                                                         | agree 31:8                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     | anomalous                                                                                         |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| accounting<br>13:2,14                                                               | 19:5 44:15                                                                        | 58:24                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          | 41:9                                                                                              |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| accounts<br>57:12                                                                   | 47:5                                                                              | agreement                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      | anomaly 47:12                                                                                     |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| accrued 25:23                                                                       | addressing                                                                        | 10:20 58:23                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    | answers 44:7                                                                                      |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| accurate 63:9                                                                       | 16:19 27:14                                                                       | ahead 21:15                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    | anticipated                                                                                       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| acknowledge<br>32:12                                                                | 33:17                                                                             | 48:13 62:12                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    | 29:10                                                                                             |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| acronym 34:20                                                                       | adequately                                                                        | ALF 34:13                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      | anything 32:14                                                                                    |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| acronyms<br>34:18                                                                   | 61:22                                                                             | ALJ 4:3 5:9,18,<br>23 6:4,12 7:13,<br>18 8:8 11:19,<br>22 12:2,7,14,<br>15 13:25 14:2,<br>5,9 16:10,12<br>17:17,21<br>18:20,21<br>20:17,21 21:3,<br>6,9,11,15,22<br>23:10,12 25:1,<br>4,8 26:10,13,<br>17 28:8,13,15<br>30:15,18 31:16<br>32:11,14,16,<br>19,24 33:3<br>34:12 35:6,10,<br>13,17,21 36:1<br>37:19 38:14,<br>17,21 43:9,12,<br>20,22 45:17<br>46:20,22,24<br>48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7, | 60:15,16                                                                                          | 60:13                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| action 15:8                                                                         | adjust 10:7                                                                       | 23 6:4,12 7:13,<br>18 8:8 11:19,<br>22 12:2,7,14,<br>15 13:25 14:2,<br>5,9 16:10,12<br>17:17,21<br>18:20,21<br>20:17,21 21:3,<br>6,9,11,15,22<br>23:10,12 25:1,<br>4,8 26:10,13,<br>17 28:8,13,15<br>30:15,18 31:16<br>32:11,14,16,<br>19,24 33:3<br>34:12 35:6,10,<br>13,17,21 36:1<br>37:19 38:14,<br>17,21 43:9,12,<br>20,22 45:17<br>46:20,22,24<br>48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                    | 9:5,15 11:16<br>17:2 20:13<br>21:11 24:5<br>47:25 48:3<br>49:22 50:23<br>55:19 59:1<br>60:9 63:13 | apologies<br>43:22 63:25                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 |
| 16:1,4,8,14<br>27:13,17<br>28:11,17 31:22<br>32:9,10 34:6<br>44:14,24 45:3,<br>9,14 | adjustment<br>4:10,16,19 5:2<br>11:2 12:24<br>15:12 17:23<br>39:21 49:18<br>61:21 | 17:17,21<br>18:20,21<br>20:17,21 21:3,<br>6,9,11,15,22<br>23:10,12 25:1,<br>4,8 26:10,13,<br>17 28:8,13,15<br>30:15,18 31:16<br>32:11,14,16,<br>19,24 33:3<br>34:12 35:6,10,<br>13,17,21 36:1<br>37:19 38:14,<br>17,21 43:9,12,<br>20,22 45:17<br>46:20,22,24<br>48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                           | amend 18:1                                                                                        | apologize 6:2                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
| actual 15:18                                                                        | adjustments<br>10:17,21                                                           | 30:15,18 31:16<br>32:11,14,16,<br>19,24 33:3<br>34:12 35:6,10,<br>13,17,21 36:1<br>37:19 38:14,<br>17,21 43:9,12,<br>20,22 45:17<br>46:20,22,24<br>48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                         | 60:9 63:13                                                                                        | 7:15 33:6                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                |
| 24:2 39:22                                                                          | admission<br>11:13 16:8<br>23:8 28:11<br>37:17 49:7                               | 32:11,14,16,<br>19,24 33:3<br>34:12 35:6,10,<br>13,17,21 36:1<br>37:19 38:14,<br>17,21 43:9,12,<br>20,22 45:17<br>46:20,22,24<br>48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           | amend 18:1                                                                                        | 63:21                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| actually 19:25                                                                      | admitted 32:10<br>45:15 56:2                                                      | 30:15,18 31:16<br>32:11,14,16,<br>19,24 33:3<br>34:12 35:6,10,<br>13,17,21 36:1<br>37:19 38:14,<br>17,21 43:9,12,<br>20,22 45:17<br>46:20,22,24<br>48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                         | amended<br>58:21                                                                                  | appearances<br>4:22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 22:24 33:1,15                                                                       | adopt 15:14<br>23:4 28:4 32:6<br>37:12 45:7<br>49:3                               | 32:11,14,16,<br>19,24 33:3<br>34:12 35:6,10,<br>13,17,21 36:1<br>37:19 38:14,<br>17,21 43:9,12,<br>20,22 45:17<br>46:20,22,24<br>48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           | amortization<br>5:4 24:1,6,11<br>37:3,8                                                           | application<br>4:9,11,14,18<br>7:6,10,21<br>11:13,24 15:10<br>22:13,19,20<br>23:2,4,8,14<br>24:16 27:15<br>28:23 33:7,8<br>35:23 36:18,25<br>37:13,17,22<br>38:1 44:21<br>46:7 47:5<br>48:22 49:3,7,<br>12,15,17 56:21<br>57:14 60:11,<br>19,20 61:13,18 |
| adding 26:1                                                                         | adopted 31:4                                                                      | 46:20,22,24<br>48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             | amortize 4:12<br>38:2,4 45:25                                                                     | applied 19:9                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             |
| addition 11:1                                                                       | affairs 22:12<br>36:17                                                            | 48:9,12 49:9,<br>11 50:16,23<br>51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            | amortizing<br>46:5                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
|                                                                                     | affect 44:23<br>47:13                                                             | 51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            | amount 13:3,<br>18,19 26:2,3,4<br>38:6 52:3<br>53:24 56:18                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
|                                                                                     |                                                                                   | 51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            | amounts 38:5<br>41:17                                                                             | applications<br>60:7,14 62:14                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
|                                                                                     |                                                                                   | 51:8 53:11,15<br>54:6,18 55:22<br>58:3,5,8 59:4,7<br>61:1,4,8 62:7,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            | analysis 39:24<br>40:2 42:7<br>44:16 56:10                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |

|                                     |                         |                            |                                   |                                        |
|-------------------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------------|----------------------------------------|
| <b>appreciate</b><br>53:17 62:4     | 29:14,18,24<br>57:11,14 | <b>begun</b> 20:2          |                                   | <b>certainly</b> 63:1                  |
| <b>approach</b> 7:12                | <b>auditing</b> 19:25   | <b>behalf</b> 5:11,20      | <b>C</b>                          | <b>CET</b> 5:4 30:10                   |
| <b>appropriate</b><br>17:11 32:21   | <b>August</b> 10:9      | 15:4 27:9                  | <b>C-i-r-a</b> 34:20              | 35:22 40:1,21                          |
| <b>approval</b> 23:20               | <b>Austin</b> 5:6       | 44:10                      | <b>calculated</b><br>13:12 41:3   | 42:11,22 45:24                         |
| 28:24 45:25                         | 21:21,25 22:7           | <b>being</b> 38:6          | 52:13                             | 50:9 51:11,15                          |
| 57:2,7,10,15                        | <b>available</b> 11:25  | 47:19 58:14,               | <b>calculating</b><br>8:11        | 61:12                                  |
| 62:14,20                            | 17:13 24:24             | 15,22 62:4                 | <b>calculation</b> 9:8            | <b>change</b> 4:14,                    |
| <b>approve</b> 16:21                | 38:12 46:19             | <b>believe</b> 9:17        | 12:25 40:11                       | 18 6:7 11:6                            |
| <b>approved</b><br>10:23 11:8       | 53:9 56:19              | 13:19 17:22                | 41:17,21 52:17                    | 15:11 18:11                            |
| 17:3,5,10                           | 58:2 60:24              | 18:16 33:23                | <b>calculations</b><br>29:15 46:8 | 27:19,23,24,25                         |
| 24:16 29:20,23                      | <b>average</b> 18:9     | 39:19 40:1                 | 56:21                             | 30:3,12,23                             |
| 46:9,15 50:6,                       | 53:23                   | 47:22 51:14                | <b>call</b> 14:7 26:15            | 32:9 38:8                              |
| 10 56:22 57:19                      | <b>aware</b> 19:4       | 55:5,7 61:24               | 59:5                              | 46:11 47:22                            |
| 60:19                               | <b>B</b>                | 63:4                       | <b>called</b> 19:5                | 49:17,24 50:20                         |
| <b>approximately</b><br>29:11 53:22 | <b>back</b> 20:21       | <b>believes</b> 46:11      | 63:22                             | 54:12,15,17                            |
| 57:20                               | 31:16 33:1              | 50:1 57:22                 | <b>calls</b> 6:10                 | 56:9                                   |
| <b>April</b> 37:6,7                 | 38:22 41:1              | <b>below</b> 39:14         | 21:20                             | <b>changed</b> 9:1,                    |
| <b>around</b> 41:20                 | 43:23 53:20             | 40:5                       | <b>Cambridge</b><br>24:15 34:22   | 11 22:25 50:25                         |
| <b>asks</b> 23:19                   | 54:6 58:9               | <b>belt</b> 10:12          | <b>came</b> 52:21                 | <b>changes</b> 7:20                    |
| 28:23 42:14                         | <b>balance</b> 24:3,9   | <b>best</b> 35:14 51:9     | <b>cap</b> 40:5,11,12,            | 11:10 15:17                            |
| 45:24                               | 37:3 38:4 46:1,         | <b>better</b> 41:4         | 24 41:2,7                         | 27:17 37:11,12                         |
| <b>assessment</b><br>33:19          | 6                       | <b>between</b> 13:18       | <b>capped</b> 39:22               | 42:4,21 47:16                          |
| <b>assistance</b><br>4:19,20 5:5    | <b>balancing</b> 4:13   | <b>bill</b> 11:7 29:22     | <b>careful</b> 8:2,9              | 49:19 50:21                            |
| 49:18,20,23                         | 38:3                    | 38:10 46:10                | <b>case</b> 11:3 17:4             | 52:22 57:2,18,                         |
| 51:12,16 55:16                      | <b>barely</b> 5:25      | 50:1 52:17                 | 30:14 35:10                       | 23                                     |
| 56:17,18 57:14                      | <b>base</b> 4:14 6:7    | 56:24                      | <b>cause</b> 15:7                 | <b>changing</b><br>10:17 30:10         |
| <b>associated</b><br>25:22 29:16    | 11:2,6 15:11            | <b>billing</b> 47:13       | 27:12 44:13                       | <b>charge</b> 9:12                     |
| <b>Associates</b><br>24:15          | <b>based</b> 18:5,11    | <b>bills</b> 11:9          | <b>caused</b> 24:9                | <b>charges</b> 4:10                    |
| <b>Association</b><br>34:22         | <b>basis</b> 16:22      | <b>bit</b> 5:24 34:3       | <b>cent</b> 9:11                  | 24:11                                  |
| <b>assuming</b> 20:4                | 17:10 19:17             | 51:1                       | 17:23,24,25                       | <b>charging</b> 19:13                  |
| <b>attempt</b> 40:4                 | 20:10 29:23             | <b>both</b> 15:19          | 49:25 52:19,                      | 26:4                                   |
| 41:20                               | 34:1 46:16              | 20:15 29:4                 | 20,21 54:11,14                    | <b>CIRA</b> 34:20                      |
| <b>Attorney</b> 5:11,               | 48:1 57:8               | 33:20                      | <b>cents</b> 9:12                 | <b>circle</b> 33:1                     |
| 19                                  | <b>before</b> 6:5 37:8  | <b>bottom</b> 34:14        | 10:24 11:7,9                      | 53:20 58:9                             |
| <b>audit</b> 16:23                  | 52:7 62:19,22           | <b>boundaries</b><br>41:20 | 17:7 24:3 29:8,                   | <b>cited</b> 60:16                     |
| 17:11 20:1,5                        | 63:9                    | <b>briefly</b> 63:11       | 9 30:3 31:3,7                     | <b>City</b> 22:8 36:15                 |
|                                     | <b>begin</b> 7:22       | <b>bring</b> 5:24          | 53:3 56:24                        | 59:20                                  |
|                                     | <b>beginning</b> 7:16   | <b>bunch</b> 40:6          | <b>certain</b> 47:18              | <b>clarification</b><br>6:5 16:2 18:15 |
|                                     | 21:17 47:17             | <b>business</b> 6:22       |                                   | 20:10 21:4                             |
|                                     | 55:7                    | 14:18,20 22:6,             |                                   | 33:23 34:4                             |
|                                     | <b>begins</b> 37:1      | 7 27:1,5 36:11,            |                                   | 35:2 40:20                             |
|                                     |                         | 14 44:7 59:19              |                                   | 46:14 53:17                            |
|                                     |                         | 62:18                      |                                   | 55:9,20 58:13                          |

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 62:21<br><b>clarify</b> 13:2,15<br>25:17 30:21<br>36:24 39:23<br>63:13<br><b>clarity</b> 9:24<br><b>Clark</b> 4:22,23,<br>24 6:9,10,13,<br>20 7:12,15,19<br>8:17 11:12,22,<br>23,25 12:3,8,<br>12 14:1 16:11<br>17:15 21:8,19,<br>20 22:4 23:7,<br>12,13,15 24:24<br>26:12 28:14<br>30:17,18,20<br>31:14 32:17,18<br>35:24 36:9<br>37:16,23 38:12<br>43:11 46:21<br>48:15,16,21<br>49:6,13 50:16,<br>17,19,23 51:4,<br>7 53:8 61:2<br>62:8,13,24<br>63:8,14,15,20,<br>21<br><b>clear</b> 51:20<br><b>close</b> 62:17<br><b>closer</b> 5:24<br><b>CMT</b> 37:3<br><b>colder</b> 41:22<br><b>collaborate</b><br>63:1<br><b>collect</b> 37:4<br>52:4<br><b>collected</b><br>10:18 13:7,19<br>37:10 38:7<br><b>collecting</b><br>49:21<br><b>collection</b><br>13:10 | <b>column</b> 9:6<br>40:8<br><b>combination</b><br>24:8<br><b>combined</b><br>27:22 30:9,11<br>32:1 51:21<br>57:17 60:7<br><b>come</b> 31:11<br><b>comes</b> 10:11<br><b>comma</b> 39:20<br><b>comments</b><br>31:21 45:7<br><b>Commission</b><br>4:5 15:9,20<br>16:21 17:9<br>23:20 28:23<br>29:19 40:16,22<br>42:3,13,14,20<br>45:25 53:20<br>62:16,19,20<br><b>Commission-</b><br><b>approved</b><br>49:21<br><b>commodity</b> 8:1<br>23:23 24:2,21<br>28:24 29:4<br><b>company</b> 4:9,<br>12,14,18,24<br>6:10 7:1,3<br>10:5,6,13,22<br>11:1,12 16:23<br>17:15 19:12<br>21:20 22:11<br>23:7,16,19<br>24:5 26:5<br>31:24 37:4,16,<br>24 38:2,3<br>39:21 46:5,8<br>49:6,14,17,20,<br>22 50:1 56:22<br>59:23 60:17,18<br>62:8,10,13,16<br><b>Company's</b><br>18:6,22 33:9 | 43:3 47:10<br>60:7,11,14,18<br>61:17 62:24<br><b>compare</b> 52:18<br>54:9<br><b>complete</b><br>19:22 57:11<br><b>completed</b><br>29:24 57:17<br><b>comply</b> 61:22<br><b>component</b><br>28:25 29:1<br>46:2 56:17<br><b>components</b><br>8:1 23:22<br><b>comprehensive</b><br>32:22 35:9<br><b>comprising</b><br>60:7<br><b>concerning</b><br>45:20<br><b>concerns</b><br>60:13<br><b>conclude</b><br>60:22<br><b>concluded</b><br>8:10 62:9<br><b>concludes</b><br>11:10 24:23<br>29:25 38:11<br>46:13 53:7<br>57:24<br><b>conclusions</b><br>56:10<br><b>concurrently</b><br>22:22<br><b>conference</b><br>36:23 38:23<br>60:10,12<br><b>confusion</b> 51:2<br><b>connection</b><br>15:2,3 27:8<br><b>consecutive</b><br>21:16 | <b>Conservation</b><br>4:12 38:2,7<br>45:24<br><b>consider</b> 41:12<br><b>consistent</b><br>47:9<br><b>consultant</b><br>27:5,9<br><b>Consumer</b><br>5:20 59:18<br><b>contained</b> 16:3<br><b>contains</b> 56:1<br><b>contents</b> 37:13<br><b>continue</b> 20:3<br>24:5 43:23,24<br><b>continued</b> 37:4<br><b>contract</b> 10:19<br><b>copies</b> 7:16<br><b>copy</b> 7:13<br>15:19,20,21,24<br>34:5<br><b>correct</b> 8:7 9:3<br>18:19 31:13<br>32:3 34:2,25<br>35:7 39:9 42:8<br>48:1,2 63:2,9<br><b>corrected</b><br>15:23 39:7<br>60:15<br><b>correction</b><br>7:23 23:3,9<br>31:4 56:6<br><b>corrections</b><br>7:9 8:17 16:25<br>22:17 36:21<br>44:20,23 45:11<br>49:1 60:16<br>63:3<br><b>cost</b> 23:21<br>24:13 29:4,5,7,<br>12<br><b>costs</b> 23:23,25<br>24:6,8 25:21<br>26:5 29:16 | <b>counsel</b> 4:4,24<br>7:17 62:5<br><b>couple</b> 17:17<br>20:6 31:20<br>32:25 34:18<br>42:24 46:25<br>54:20 58:5<br><b>court</b> 7:14,17<br><b>cover</b> 33:13<br>54:21<br><b>coverage</b><br>23:21<br><b>covering</b> 38:22<br><b>credit</b> 7:25<br>8:12,13,14<br>46:2 49:23<br>52:1,2,3<br><b>cross-</b><br><b>examination</b><br>24:25 38:13<br><b>cross-</b><br><b>referenced</b><br>25:9<br><b>cumulative</b><br>35:14 50:5,20<br>62:17<br><b>cumulatively</b><br>52:25<br><b>current</b> 29:17<br>56:18<br><b>currently</b> 38:6<br>57:22<br><b>customer</b> 9:10<br>10:24 17:6<br>18:10 19:19<br>24:16 27:22<br>29:21 46:9<br>49:24 50:12<br>52:13 53:2,23<br>56:23 57:18,20<br><b>customer's</b><br>11:7,9 38:10<br>50:1<br><b>customers</b><br>19:5,14 25:25 |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 26:5 37:9,10<br>55:13,15,16<br>56:19<br><b>cutting</b> 43:25                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     | <b>developed</b><br>24:13<br><b>different</b> 8:25<br><b>difficult</b> 6:1<br><b>difficulty</b> 6:3<br><b>direction</b> 7:7<br>9:20 10:2 15:8<br>22:15 31:25<br>36:19 48:24<br><b>discovered</b><br>15:23<br><b>discovery</b><br>19:11<br><b>discuss</b> 63:11<br><b>discussed</b> 6:5<br>19:11,22 27:20<br>36:22 57:3<br><b>discussion</b><br>20:19 28:9<br>31:15 43:21<br>54:5<br><b>discussions</b><br>31:23<br><b>dispute</b> 25:16,<br>20<br><b>distribution</b><br>4:15 6:7 15:11<br>46:2<br><b>Division</b> 5:12,<br>14 14:6,23<br>15:5,9 16:7,20<br>17:8,11 19:8<br>25:14 26:14<br>27:4,10,25<br>28:10 29:15,22<br>30:2 32:8<br>44:11 45:2,13<br>46:6,11,14<br>56:20 57:1,6,7,<br>10,16,22 61:11<br>62:19,22 63:4<br><b>Division's</b> 5:16<br>16:3 20:8<br>30:14 33:25<br>34:5 44:1,14, | 16,24 45:5,7<br>48:3 55:23<br>56:1,9<br><b>DNG</b> 8:1,10<br>13:4,6 17:3<br>20:22 46:2<br>56:17<br><b>docket</b> 5:2,4,6,<br>8,14 6:6 7:5<br>9:17 10:5,6<br>11:3,5,16<br>13:12 15:5,12,<br>15 16:19 17:4<br>20:9 21:17,18<br>22:14,22<br>23:17,18 24:7<br>25:9,10,11,18,<br>19 27:10,14<br>28:2,22 29:20<br>30:4,8,10,24<br>33:8,16,17,24,<br>25 35:22,25<br>36:25 38:1<br>40:1 43:4,13,<br>24 44:2,8,11,<br>17,25 45:4,8,<br>20,23 46:4,9,<br>15 47:19<br>48:14,17,23<br>49:16 50:7,8,9,<br>10 51:11,12,<br>14,19 53:4<br>54:23 55:24<br>56:7,10,13,16,<br>22 57:5,8,13,<br>15 58:10,16,22<br>60:8 61:13,14<br><b>dockets</b> 4:6,7,<br>25 5:13,16,22<br>21:16 22:21,<br>23,24 27:14<br>32:23 33:20<br>35:7 42:22<br>44:15 50:6,25<br>51:5,10 52:24<br>55:20 57:1,3,4, | 19 59:22 60:8,<br>10<br><b>document</b><br>38:25<br><b>documents</b><br>22:18<br><b>dollar</b> 53:24<br><b>dollars</b> 54:16<br><b>done</b> 19:10<br><b>Douglas</b> 5:16<br>26:15,20 27:3<br><b>down</b> 39:20<br>43:16 52:6<br><b>draft</b> 15:21<br><b>due</b> 9:1 25:25<br><b>duly</b> 6:17 14:13<br>22:1 26:21<br>36:6 59:11<br><b>during</b> 19:14<br>29:6 40:13<br><b>duties</b> 59:21 | <b>employed</b><br>22:11 27:4<br><b>employer</b><br>14:18,22 27:1<br>36:12,15 44:8<br><b>employment</b><br>15:3 27:8<br><b>employs</b> 22:10<br><b>Enabling</b> 4:12<br>38:3,7 45:24<br><b>end</b> 5:7 35:11,<br>15 51:6<br><b>ended</b> 41:16<br><b>energy</b> 4:19<br>5:5 24:14,15<br>34:22,24<br>49:18,20,23<br>51:12,16 55:16<br>57:13<br><b>ensure</b> 63:2,9<br><b>entertain</b> 62:11<br><b>entities</b> 63:1<br><b>entitled</b> 4:8<br>19:1<br><b>entries</b> 57:11<br><b>Eric</b> 5:15 14:7,<br>12,20<br><b>error</b> 31:25<br><b>established</b><br>24:7<br><b>even</b> 16:25<br><b>event</b> 13:8<br>63:24<br><b>every</b> 26:1,3<br><b>everyone</b> 4:3<br>62:9<br><b>evidence</b> 11:13<br>45:15 56:2<br><b>EXAMINATION</b><br>6:19 12:6<br>14:15 17:20<br>22:3 25:7<br>26:23 30:19<br>31:17 33:2<br>36:8 38:20 |
| <b>D</b><br><b>Danny</b> 5:21<br>59:6,10,17<br><b>data</b> 40:17<br><b>date</b> 13:19,22<br>57:9<br><b>dated</b> 11:15<br>27:13 28:12<br>44:14<br><b>day</b> 15:22<br><b>days</b> 6:3 39:22<br>41:10,11,13,14<br><b>debit</b> 24:4,10<br><b>December</b> 13:9<br><b>decrease</b><br>23:21,22,23<br>24:17,18,20<br>28:24 29:2,4,<br>21 31:8 50:11<br>51:5,15 53:1,5,<br>20 54:8,14,16<br>57:20,21<br><b>definitely</b> 63:8<br><b>degree</b> 39:22<br><b>dekatherm</b><br>24:4<br><b>dekatherms</b><br>10:25 24:17<br>55:2<br><b>depreciation</b><br>11:4 17:4<br><b>describe</b> 7:20<br><b>described</b><br>23:4,9<br><b>description</b><br>61:22<br><b>determined</b><br>31:24 |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         | <b>E</b><br><b>each</b> 5:22 9:22,<br>23 10:1 13:13<br>50:25 57:15<br>62:15<br><b>earlier</b> 24:7<br>25:9,11 33:16<br>51:25 58:16<br>60:2<br><b>East</b> 15:1 27:5<br>59:19<br><b>effect</b> 20:4,9,<br>15 23:1 24:22<br>30:9 32:1 39:6<br>40:9 47:18<br>50:5 51:22<br>57:22<br><b>effective</b> 16:22<br>57:9<br><b>electronic</b><br>15:20,23,24                                          |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |
|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 44:4 46:23<br>48:20 53:14<br>56:3 58:7<br>59:13 61:7<br><b>examined</b> 6:18<br>14:14 22:2<br>26:22 36:7<br>59:12<br><b>excuse</b> 8:3 9:3<br>13:1 43:24<br>60:17<br><b>excused</b> 21:9,<br>12<br><b>exhibit</b> 7:22,24<br>8:15,23,24 9:5,<br>7,10,24,25<br>10:1 12:19<br>24:11 51:23<br>52:18 54:10,24<br>56:7<br><b>exhibits</b> 7:6,<br>10,21 8:18<br>9:13,22 11:13,<br>17,24 22:13<br>23:5,8,14<br>37:13,17,22<br>49:4,8,12 54:9<br><b>explain</b> 30:6<br><b>explanation</b><br>40:17<br><b>extent</b> 33:16 | <b>few</b> 19:12 61:4<br><b>field</b> 25:15<br><b>figure</b> 30:7<br>31:21<br><b>file</b> 11:16 42:11<br><b>filed</b> 9:13,17<br>15:8,9,14<br>22:21,25 27:13<br>28:1 34:6<br>44:14 51:14,17<br>52:7,19,25<br>54:11 62:23<br>63:6<br><b>filing</b> 8:12<br>10:11 17:5<br>18:1 27:20<br>29:10 40:20,<br>21,23 46:4<br>52:2,17 54:10<br><b>filings</b> 29:17<br><b>final</b> 20:23 21:2<br>43:13 53:6<br>58:15,21<br><b>find</b> 13:6 60:13<br><b>finding</b> 29:18<br><b>firm</b> 19:17,19<br><b>first</b> 6:7,17<br>14:13 22:1<br>23:23 26:21<br>36:6 37:1<br>39:20 41:7<br>59:11<br><b>fixed</b> 24:8<br><b>flows</b> 13:12<br>52:12<br><b>fly</b> 51:10<br><b>follow</b> 51:25<br><b>follow-up</b><br>13:16,25 21:6<br>26:10 43:9<br>48:9,11 55:11<br>61:4<br><b>follows</b> 6:18<br>14:14 22:2<br>26:22 36:7 | 59:12<br><b>footnote</b> 55:2,<br>12 56:6<br><b>forecast</b> 8:25<br>29:4<br><b>forecasted</b><br>24:14 55:2<br><b>forgotten</b><br>43:14<br><b>forward</b> 41:24<br>42:2<br><b>found</b> 52:17<br><b>four</b> 50:5 51:10<br>56:25 57:3,19<br><b>friends</b> 54:1<br><b>full</b> 6:21 14:18<br>22:5 27:1<br>29:24 36:11<br>44:7<br><b>fully</b> 34:16<br><b>further</b> 12:1<br>32:14,15,16<br>40:17 53:8<br><b>future</b> 42:21,22 | 40:2<br><b>given</b> 19:3<br>47:16 50:20<br><b>goes</b> 31:25<br>52:11 53:4<br><b>good</b> 4:3 5:10<br>14:9,10,17<br>21:22,23<br>26:17,18,25<br>35:1,21 48:12<br>59:7,8<br><b>Great</b> 58:25<br><b>group</b> 5:13<br>24:14 34:24<br><b>grow</b> 26:4<br><b>GS</b> 17:5 18:9<br>24:16 29:21<br>46:9 53:23<br>56:23 57:20<br><b>guess</b> 18:13<br>40:4,7 41:2,12<br>42:17 62:25 | <b>hearing</b> 4:6<br>7:16 44:19<br>47:17<br><b>heat</b> 41:9<br>55:13,15<br><b>help</b> 13:15,17<br>54:2<br><b>helpful</b> 50:15<br>53:19 55:21<br>59:2<br><b>here</b> 13:11<br>34:17 36:24<br>51:10 54:2<br>62:4<br><b>high</b> 41:9,10<br><b>higher</b> 52:5<br><b>highest</b> 19:13<br><b>himself</b> 48:19<br><b>hold</b> 6:24 7:2<br>36:16<br><b>Honor</b> 8:3<br>18:16 32:20<br>35:8<br><b>hoping</b> 20:10<br>25:17<br><b>hot</b> 41:11,14 |
| <b>F</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <b>G</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            | <b>H</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        | <b>I</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           |
| <b>fact</b> 37:3<br><b>factor</b> 37:1,2<br>39:4<br><b>fail</b> 19:5<br><b>familiar</b> 9:15<br>18:21 61:9,15<br><b>familiarity</b> 19:3<br><b>far</b> 25:23<br><b>February</b> 41:11<br><b>fee</b> 26:2,3<br><b>feel</b> 47:9                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <b>gas</b> 4:9,10,12,<br>14,18,24 7:1,2<br>22:11 23:19,21<br>24:13,14 25:24<br>26:5 29:1,5,7,<br>8,11,12 36:15,<br>16 38:2 49:17<br>60:6<br><b>GDNG</b> 21:2<br><b>general</b> 11:3<br>36:17 38:10<br>50:11 52:13,15<br>53:2<br><b>General's</b> 5:11,<br>20<br><b>getting</b> 42:6<br><b>give</b> 32:22<br>33:18 35:13                                                                                                             | <b>half</b> 38:9<br><b>handed</b> 51:24<br><b>happen</b> 20:1<br><b>happened</b><br>40:19 41:14,19<br>51:19<br><b>happens</b><br>52:11,14<br><b>happy</b> 12:12<br>40:17 42:4,15,<br>22 50:13,17<br><b>hard</b> 15:19,24<br><b>having</b> 6:2,17<br>14:13 22:1<br>26:21 36:6<br>59:11<br><b>hear</b> 5:25<br><b>heard</b> 17:1<br>25:11                                         | <b>identified</b><br>11:17 16:8<br>25:14 48:18<br>55:25 56:2<br><b>identifies</b><br>27:21<br><b>identity</b> 36:11<br><b>IHP</b> 10:12<br><b>impact</b> 8:13<br>9:10 11:8<br>27:22 30:11<br>40:10,13 57:17<br><b>impacted</b> 8:24<br>9:14 18:10<br><b>impacts</b> 40:3,4                                                                                                                                                                         |

|                                      |                                       |                           |                            |                                      |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|----------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| <b>implementatio</b><br>n 17:2 58:19 | 56:22                                 | <b>involves</b> 7:23      | <b>later</b> 34:19,21      | <b>maintaining</b><br>56:18          |
| <b>implemented</b><br>11:5           | <b>information</b><br>9:16 11:15      | <b>involving</b><br>25:14 | <b>leads</b> 24:10         | <b>majority</b> 10:10                |
| <b>imply</b> 20:25                   | 31:11 60:12                           | <b>issue</b> 19:8,13      | <b>leave</b> 39:2          | <b>make</b> 7:20                     |
| <b>important</b> 40:7                | <b>infrastructure</b><br>4:15 5:2 6:8 | 33:15                     | <b>leaving</b> 42:20       | 15:17 16:21                          |
| <b>in-depth</b> 20:5                 | 8:12 10:7                             | <b>issues</b> 19:21       | <b>legal</b> 4:4 25:14     | 31:12,21 34:4                        |
| <b>include</b> 10:8                  | 12:24 15:12                           | <b>items</b> 19:12        | <b>Let</b> 13:16 32:25     | 39:1 42:4 43:1,                      |
| 13:18 25:18                          | 20:11 21:1                            |                           | 56:25                      | 15 49:19 51:1,                       |
| <b>included</b> 7:25                 | 30:3 50:8                             | <b>J</b>                  | <b>letting</b> 41:3        | 20 58:23 60:5                        |
| 8:11 12:25                           | 51:18 53:4                            | <b>Jenniffer</b> 4:23     | <b>light</b> 47:8          | 63:23                                |
| 13:23 17:2                           | <b>instead</b> 32:1,4                 | <b>Jordan</b> 5:1         | <b>like</b> 12:18 14:7     | <b>manager</b> 36:17                 |
| 25:22 37:12                          | <b>intended</b> 41:18                 | 6:16,23                   | 16:7 26:15                 | <b>March</b> 10:18                   |
| <b>includes</b> 24:1                 | <b>intending</b> 41:5                 | <b>July</b> 24:2 38:4     | 28:11 31:10,11             | 13:8,20 41:10                        |
| 44:16 57:3                           | <b>intention</b> 20:14                | 39:6 41:1                 | 33:14 40:16,22             | <b>Martinez</b> 5:22                 |
| <b>income</b> 4:19                   | 62:24 63:8                            | 45:25                     | 41:24 42:3,14,             | 32:21 35:17                          |
| 5:5 30:11                            | <b>interest</b> 13:18,                | <b>June</b> 37:7 39:7,    | 21 60:5 61:12              | 59:6,7,10,15,                        |
| 49:18 56:17                          | 23 17:9 33:10,                        | 10                        | <b>likely</b> 19:4         | 17 60:24 61:1,                       |
| 57:13 60:8                           | 22 43:5 46:12                         |                           | <b>likewise</b> 59:25      | 4 62:2                               |
| <b>incorporate</b><br>44:6           | 48:5 50:3                             | <b>K</b>                  | <b>limit</b> 39:21         | <b>matter</b> 4:8,11,                |
| <b>incorrect</b> 20:24               | 57:23 60:21                           | <b>Kelly</b> 5:3 36:5,    | <b>limitation</b><br>35:18 | 13,17 25:12                          |
| <b>increase</b> 9:2,                 | <b>interim</b> 16:22                  | 13                        | <b>limiter</b> 40:9        | 36:18 37:18,25                       |
| 12 10:13,23                          | 17:10 20:2,4,                         | <b>kind</b> 40:18         | <b>limits</b> 47:11        | 63:4                                 |
| 11:8 17:3,6                          | 10,14,25 21:1                         | 41:20 42:1,19             | <b>line</b> 7:24 8:4,7,    | <b>matters</b> 4:8                   |
| 20:23 23:24                          | 29:23 34:1                            | 47:12 50:13               | 14 9:6,11                  | <b>may</b> 7:12,13                   |
| 24:21 28:25                          | 46:16 48:1                            | 51:21,25 63:16            | 12:22 52:1,6,7             | 12:14 14:7                           |
| 31:3,7 38:6,9                        | 57:8,9,15                             | <b>kindly</b> 5:24        | <b>litigation</b> 25:22    | 20:16 21:9,12                        |
| 46:10 47:21                          | 58:12,14,22                           | <b>knowledge</b>          | <b>long</b> 42:18          | 35:8 37:7 54:1                       |
| 49:25 51:5,15,                       | <b>interrupt</b> 19:5,                | 32:3                      | <b>looked</b> 19:21        | 63:22                                |
| 16 52:8,20,21                        | 15,17                                 | <b>known</b> 28:22        | 31:20                      | <b>maybe</b> 8:4                     |
| 53:3 54:11,15                        | <b>interruptible</b><br>19:18         | 45:23                     | <b>looking</b> 19:8,       | 41:25 51:19                          |
| 56:23                                | <b>interruption</b><br>7:24,25 10:18  | <b>L</b>                  | 24 41:4                    | <b>mean</b> 55:15                    |
| <b>increases</b> 37:2                | 13:8 19:1,14                          | <b>Lake</b> 10:11         | <b>low</b> 4:19 5:5        | <b>meeting</b> 18:7                  |
| <b>incremental</b><br>10:10,19       | <b>into</b> 19:21                     | 15:1 22:8                 | 30:11 49:18                | <b>Melanie</b> 4:4                   |
| <b>independently</b><br>57:16        | 20:4,9,15                             | 36:14 59:19               | 56:17 57:13                | <b>memo</b> 20:24                    |
| <b>indicated</b><br>17:22            | 24:22 39:6                            | <b>Lakeside</b> 8:25      | 60:8                       | 32:2                                 |
| <b>indicating</b> 31:2               | 45:14,15 56:2                         | 10:20                     | <b>lower</b> 29:8,9        | <b>memorandum</b><br>28:1 45:14      |
| <b>individual</b><br>57:11,18        | <b>investing</b> 10:8                 | <b>large</b> 41:16        | <b>M</b>                   | 55:25                                |
| <b>individually</b><br>29:20 46:9    | <b>investment</b><br>10:14            | <b>last</b> 4:17 10:11    | <b>made</b> 44:20          | <b>Mendenhall</b><br>5:3 35:24 36:1, |
|                                      | <b>investments</b><br>10:10           | 17:4 27:21                | 56:6 58:13                 | 5,10,13 37:23                        |
|                                      |                                       | 34:14,15 40:1,            | 63:3                       | 38:12,17 42:5,                       |
|                                      |                                       | 8 41:8 48:14              | <b>main</b> 10:12          | 24 43:10 44:20                       |
|                                      |                                       | 55:12                     | <b>maintain</b> 49:22      | 47:4,16 48:16,                       |
|                                      |                                       |                           |                            | 22 49:13 50:4,                       |

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 24 53:9,11,16<br>54:18,20 55:19<br>56:6 62:25<br><b>mention</b> 21:12<br><b>mentioned</b><br>40:23 41:22<br>45:8 51:24<br>57:4<br><b>mentions</b><br>19:17<br><b>messed</b> 41:15<br><b>methodology</b><br>39:16,25 40:8<br>41:2,21,25<br>42:2 47:6<br><b>microphone</b><br>5:24<br><b>might</b> 32:21<br>33:4 42:25<br><b>million</b> 9:7,9<br>10:13,15,16,23<br>16:24 25:19,24<br>28:24,25 29:2<br>38:5,6 46:1,6<br>49:21 52:7<br><b>minor</b> 27:19<br><b>misheard</b> 8:5<br><b>modification</b><br>60:1<br><b>modify</b> 62:10<br><b>moment</b> 20:16<br>28:6 30:22<br>31:14 43:19<br>54:4 63:25<br><b>money</b> 37:4,5,<br>9,10<br><b>month</b> 26:1,3<br><b>monthly</b> 26:2<br><b>months</b> 55:6<br><b>more</b> 16:24<br>19:11 20:6<br>41:13 42:24<br>43:19<br><b>morning</b> 4:3,5<br>5:10 6:6 11:18 | 14:9,10,17<br>17:1 18:6,7<br>19:22 21:22,23<br>26:17,18,25<br>27:20 31:11<br>59:7,8 63:17<br><b>most</b> 11:3<br><b>motion</b> 62:11<br><b>move</b> 11:12<br>16:7 23:7<br>28:11 35:22<br>37:16 43:12<br>49:6 62:14<br><b>moved</b> 19:18<br><b>moving</b> 8:23<br>19:16<br><b>much</b> 7:18<br>18:14 33:5<br>39:13 42:23<br>48:7 53:16<br>59:1 62:3,4<br><hr/> <b>N</b><br><b>name</b> 4:23 6:21<br>9:23 14:18,20<br>22:5,7 27:1,3<br>36:11,13 44:7<br>59:15,17<br><b>nameplates</b><br>63:23<br><b>natural</b> 4:10<br>29:1<br><b>necessary</b><br>45:16<br><b>need</b> 22:25<br>43:15 57:15<br><b>needs</b> 59:6<br><b>Nelson</b> 4:24<br><b>net</b> 29:1 31:8<br>51:6 57:20<br><b>new</b> 16:21 17:8<br>37:8 47:6<br><b>next</b> 14:20<br>15:22 37:6 | 40:21 42:11<br><b>nominated</b><br>19:20<br><b>non-gas</b> 4:15<br>6:8 15:11<br>23:25 29:1<br>46:2<br><b>None</b> 11:20<br><b>normal</b> 41:13<br><b>normalization</b><br>39:15,25 40:3,<br>11 41:3,15<br>47:6 61:15,21<br><b>North</b> 10:12<br><b>Nos</b> 57:8<br><b>notation</b> 39:1,7<br><b>note</b> 38:25<br><b>noted</b> 32:9<br>61:21<br><b>Nothing</b> 21:7<br>32:15<br><b>notice</b> 22:23<br><b>noticed</b> 60:10<br><b>number</b> 27:22<br>31:24 40:7<br>53:6<br><b>numbers</b> 18:8<br>31:12 40:6<br><hr/> <b>O</b><br><b>objection</b><br>11:19,21<br>16:10,11 23:10<br>28:13 37:19,21<br>49:9<br><b>occur</b> 50:5,20<br><b>occurred</b> 13:8<br><b>october</b> 16:22<br>24:22 55:3,7,8<br>57:9<br><b>off</b> 20:17,19<br>28:8,9 31:14,<br>15,19 43:18,<br>21,25 54:3,5 | 63:10,24<br><b>offers</b> 17:8<br><b>Office</b> 5:11,20<br>17:16 59:5,18<br>60:6,9,12,17,<br>18 62:22<br><b>officer</b> 4:5<br><b>Ogden</b> 10:12<br><b>old</b> 41:2 42:2<br><b>Olsen</b> 5:19,23<br>6:2 8:3 11:21<br>12:4 17:16<br>18:16,20 25:3<br>32:19,20 35:6,<br>8,12,16 37:21<br>38:16 43:14,17<br>53:13 58:4<br>59:4,5,14<br>60:24<br><b>one</b> 5:21 19:13,<br>21 27:19 28:6<br>34:3 43:19<br>46:14 49:1<br>54:1,4 55:11<br><b>ongoing</b> 29:18<br><b>only</b> 8:11 20:25<br>27:24 33:16<br>54:16<br><b>operator</b> 26:2,<br>3<br><b>opportunity</b><br>59:22 63:5<br><b>opposed</b> 58:22<br><b>order</b> 21:16<br><b>ordered</b> 11:2<br><b>orders</b> 42:13<br><b>original</b> 52:2<br><b>originally</b> 7:25<br>32:2 51:14<br>52:19,25 54:11<br><b>Orton</b> 5:15<br>14:7,8,9,12,17,<br>20 15:2 16:15<br>17:13,17 18:21<br>21:4,5,9 57:5 | 58:10,13<br><b>outlined</b> 47:17,<br>20<br><b>over</b> 19:20<br>50:14<br><b>overall</b> 11:8<br>13:11 23:21<br>50:11 52:25<br>53:1 54:8,15<br><b>overcollected</b><br>41:16<br><b>own</b> 47:13<br><hr/> <b>P</b><br><b>P-r-o-c-e-e-d-i-</b><br><b>n-g-s</b> 4:1<br><b>paid</b> 10:24<br><b>paragraph</b><br>22:19 27:21<br>39:14 40:4<br>47:3,5 61:17<br><b>Pardon</b> 34:10<br><b>part</b> 29:14<br>55:12 58:13,14<br>59:21<br><b>participate</b><br>59:25<br><b>participated</b><br>15:4 27:9<br>44:10 60:9<br><b>particular</b><br>13:14 20:9<br>25:13 55:1<br>61:13<br><b>particularly</b><br>19:12 61:10<br><b>pass-through</b><br>4:9 5:8 21:17<br>23:18 25:12<br>26:6 27:15<br>28:23 29:10,17<br>50:8 51:11,14<br><b>passed</b> 25:24<br>47:25 |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|

|                                                                                                              |                                                                                           |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| <b>past</b> 8:23 39:20                                                                                       | 7:2 28:2 33:9,<br>18 36:16 43:3                                                           | <b>process</b> 19:23<br>29:18                                                                                 | <b>Q</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                       | 15:11,12 17:4,<br>22 19:13 20:13                                                                                                                                                                                       |
| <b>Patricia</b> 5:10                                                                                         |                                                                                           | <b>production</b><br>29:5,13,16                                                                               | <b>QGC</b> 15:10                                                                                                                                                                                               | 21:1 29:23                                                                                                                                                                                                             |
| <b>penalties</b><br>10:18                                                                                    | <b>possible</b> 42:3                                                                      | <b>projected</b> 29:8,<br>9                                                                                   | <b>qualified</b><br>55:13,15,16<br>56:19                                                                                                                                                                       | 37:8 38:8 46:3<br>47:19,25                                                                                                                                                                                             |
| <b>penalty</b> 7:24,<br>25 13:6,7                                                                            | <b>practice</b> 62:19,<br>25                                                              | <b>projects</b> 10:9,<br>12                                                                                   | <b>qualifying</b><br>49:24                                                                                                                                                                                     | 49:19,20 52:13<br>56:17 57:2                                                                                                                                                                                           |
| <b>pending</b> 33:8                                                                                          | <b>preliminary</b><br>16:20                                                               | <b>proposal</b> 52:9                                                                                          | <b>Questar</b> 4:9,<br>11,14,18,24<br>7:1,2 22:11<br>23:19 25:24<br>26:5 30:2<br>36:15,16 38:2<br>39:23 49:17,19<br>60:6 61:23                                                                                 | <b>rates</b> 4:10 9:1<br>11:2,6 13:12<br>16:21,25 17:3,<br>6,8 20:2,4,9,<br>11,14 23:1<br>24:21 25:18,23<br>27:22 29:1<br>30:10 33:9,20,<br>21,25 43:4<br>46:13 48:4<br>49:25 50:2<br>52:12,15<br>57:18,21,24<br>60:20 |
| <b>penny</b> 18:12                                                                                           | <b>prepare</b> 7:6<br>15:7 27:12<br>44:13                                                 | <b>propose</b> 16:16                                                                                          |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>percent</b> 11:9<br>17:7 18:13,14,<br>17,19 24:19<br>29:11 38:9<br>41:22 50:13<br>54:12,14,15,16<br>57:21 | <b>prepared</b> 6:13<br>7:7 9:19 10:1<br>15:7 22:14<br>27:12 36:19<br>44:13 48:17,23      | <b>proposed</b><br>10:22 16:21<br>24:20,21 29:23<br>43:4 48:4<br>49:24 50:21<br>52:22 57:18<br>58:14,15 60:18 | <b>question</b> 12:8,<br>19 13:16 25:5<br>38:17 42:19<br>45:11 50:18<br>54:8 55:11<br>61:20                                                                                                                    |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>percentage</b><br>18:9 54:8                                                                               | <b>present</b> 16:18<br>30:1 42:3<br>44:19 56:5,12                                        | <b>proposes</b> 11:1<br>38:3                                                                                  | <b>questioning</b><br>12:1                                                                                                                                                                                     |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>performed</b><br>16:23                                                                                    | <b>presented</b><br>29:19 57:16                                                           | <b>proposing</b><br>49:19,22                                                                                  | <b>questions</b><br>12:2,4,5,12<br>13:25 17:14,<br>15,16,17 20:6<br>21:6 25:1,3<br>26:10 30:16,17<br>32:16 38:14,16<br>42:24 43:9<br>44:7 46:19,20,<br>25 53:9,10,11<br>58:2,3,4,6<br>60:25 61:1,5,<br>10 62:2 | <b>rather</b> 8:4<br>30:24 31:8<br>34:10                                                                                                                                                                               |
| <b>performs</b><br>17:11                                                                                     | <b>presiding</b> 4:4                                                                      | <b>provide</b> 8:15<br>40:18 45:20<br>56:25                                                                   |                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <b>read</b> 13:5 32:4                                                                                                                                                                                                  |
| <b>period</b> 29:6<br>40:13 55:3                                                                             | <b>previous</b> 29:9,<br>17 46:4                                                          | <b>provided</b> 7:16<br>8:16 9:22 62:9                                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <b>reading</b> 8:2,9                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| <b>periods</b> 19:1<br>55:6                                                                                  | <b>previously</b><br>9:13 11:17<br>16:8 32:10<br>44:2 45:8<br>48:18 55:25<br>56:1,2 61:10 | <b>provision</b><br>18:22,25 19:4,<br>9 39:15                                                                 |                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <b>reads</b> 37:2                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| <b>pertain</b> 44:25                                                                                         | <b>prices</b> 24:14                                                                       | <b>Provo</b> 10:12                                                                                            |                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <b>realize</b> 29:21<br>46:10 56:23                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| <b>phone</b> 6:1                                                                                             | <b>primary</b> 29:3                                                                       | <b>public</b> 5:12<br>14:23 17:9<br>23:19 27:4<br>33:10,22 43:5<br>46:12 48:5<br>50:2 57:23<br>60:21          |                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <b>really</b> 41:9,10,<br>11,14 42:18<br>53:17                                                                                                                                                                         |
| <b>Pinedale</b><br>25:15,20                                                                                  | <b>prior</b> 7:16<br>25:19 30:23                                                          | <b>Purchase</b> 29:5                                                                                          | <b>R</b>                                                                                                                                                                                                       | <b>reason</b> 29:3<br>41:7                                                                                                                                                                                             |
| <b>pipe</b> 43:17                                                                                            | <b>Pro</b> 29:7,12,16                                                                     | <b>purchased</b><br>24:13 29:8                                                                                | <b>raised</b> 60:13                                                                                                                                                                                            | <b>reasonable</b><br>33:10,22 43:4<br>46:12 48:5<br>50:2 57:24<br>60:20                                                                                                                                                |
| <b>PIRA</b> 24:14<br>34:24                                                                                   | <b>probably</b> 6:1<br>42:18                                                              | <b>pursuant</b> 58:15                                                                                         | <b>rate</b> 4:15,20<br>5:2,6 6:8 8:1<br>9:8 10:8 11:3<br>12:24 13:7,13                                                                                                                                         | <b>reasonableness</b><br>s 33:19                                                                                                                                                                                       |
| <b>place</b> 4:6 41:8<br>47:12 50:14                                                                         | <b>problem</b> 12:11                                                                      | <b>put</b> 39:21<br>40:12 41:7,20<br>47:12                                                                    |                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <b>received</b><br>11:22,24<br>16:12,14<br>23:12,14                                                                                                                                                                    |
| <b>planned</b> 42:19                                                                                         | <b>procedure</b><br>63:4                                                                  |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>planning</b> 42:1                                                                                         | <b>proceed</b> 28:21<br>35:23 45:22                                                       |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>plans</b> 39:24                                                                                           | <b>proceeding</b><br>25:13                                                                |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>point</b> 15:18<br>41:25                                                                                  |                                                                                           |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>pointed</b> 20:24                                                                                         |                                                                                           |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>portion</b> 8:11<br>13:4,7 24:2                                                                           |                                                                                           |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>pose</b> 50:17                                                                                            |                                                                                           |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| <b>position</b> 6:24                                                                                         |                                                                                           |                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 28:15,17 37:22<br>49:11,12 58:10<br><b>receiving</b><br>55:16<br><b>recent</b> 11:3<br><b>recommend</b><br>57:7<br><b>recommendati</b><br><b>on</b> 16:3 20:8<br><b>recommended</b><br>62:15<br><b>recommending</b><br>46:15<br><b>recommends</b><br>16:20 29:22<br>57:2<br><b>record</b> 6:6,22<br>9:24 14:19<br>20:18,19,21<br>22:6 27:2 28:8,<br>9 31:14,15,16,<br>19 36:24 43:1,<br>18,21,23 51:20<br>54:3,5,6 59:16<br>63:3,11,24<br><b>reduce</b> 11:6<br><b>reduced</b> 10:16<br><b>reducing</b> 13:11<br><b>reduction</b> 7:23<br>8:13 9:2<br><b>refer</b> 7:22<br>25:15 55:13<br><b>reference</b><br>15:25 18:25<br>39:6 61:14<br><b>referenced</b><br>30:7<br><b>references</b><br>27:22<br><b>referencing</b><br>34:17<br><b>referred</b> 8:6<br>25:19<br><b>referring</b> 13:14<br>34:21 39:3 | <b>refers</b> 19:19<br><b>refine</b> 41:5,25<br><b>reflect</b> 63:3<br><b>reflects</b> 9:6<br><b>regard</b> 5:13,15<br>7:5 45:3<br><b>regarding</b><br>25:12 30:23<br>31:21 45:8<br>55:12 58:12,<br>13,18 61:12<br><b>regards</b> 54:23<br><b>register</b> 33:5<br><b>regulatory</b> 7:4<br>22:12 36:17<br><b>Reif</b> 4:3,4 5:9,<br>18,23 6:4,12<br>7:13,18 8:8<br>11:19,22 12:2,<br>7,14,15 13:25<br>14:2,5,9 16:10,<br>12 17:17,21<br>18:20,21<br>20:17,21 21:3,<br>6,9,11,15,22<br>23:10,12 25:1,<br>4,8 26:10,13,<br>17 28:8,13,15<br>30:15,18 31:16<br>32:11,14,16,<br>19,24 33:3<br>34:12,13 35:6,<br>10,13,17,21<br>36:1 37:19<br>38:14,17,21<br>43:9,12,20,22<br>45:17 46:20,<br>22,24 48:9,12<br>49:9,11 50:16,<br>23 51:8 53:11,<br>15 54:6,18<br>55:22 58:3,5,8<br>59:4,7 61:1,4,8<br>62:7,12,21<br>63:7,12,18,21 | <b>related</b> 10:8,<br>14,17 13:4,6,8<br><b>relatively</b> 24:8<br><b>relief</b> 10:4<br>23:16 37:24<br>49:14 62:10<br><b>remember</b><br>30:25 31:2,4<br><b>removed</b> 40:25<br><b>replacement</b><br>10:7,8 50:9<br><b>report</b> 34:19,21<br>39:24 42:21<br>47:20<br><b>reported</b> 13:22<br>47:8,23<br><b>reporter</b> 7:14,<br>17<br><b>reporting</b> 42:6<br>61:15<br><b>represent</b><br>27:25 57:24<br><b>represents</b><br>23:21 28:1<br>46:12<br><b>request</b> 15:8,<br>19 16:1,4,9,14<br>24:1,20 27:13,<br>18 28:11,17<br>29:3 31:22<br>32:9,10,12<br>34:6 44:14,24<br>45:3,9,14<br>56:16 62:10,16<br>63:23<br><b>requested</b><br>33:9,20,21<br>46:11 47:19<br>57:2,23 58:21<br><b>requesting</b><br>10:13 16:24<br>24:5 33:25<br><b>requests</b> 23:16<br>32:8 45:13 | <b>require</b> 57:14<br><b>requirement</b><br>9:2,3,7,9<br>10:15,22 12:25<br>13:11 29:11<br>52:14<br><b>Research</b><br>24:15 34:22<br><b>respect</b> 12:22<br>20:11 33:7<br>40:7 47:19<br><b>respectfully</b><br>23:19<br><b>respective</b><br>57:12<br><b>response</b> 15:8,<br>15,19 16:1,4,9,<br>14 27:13,18<br>28:12,17 31:22<br>32:9,10 34:7<br>35:14 44:14,24<br>45:3,9,15 56:1<br><b>responses</b><br>44:16 45:3<br><b>rest</b> 58:22<br><b>result</b> 10:23<br>11:10 13:10<br>16:19 17:23<br>38:8 49:25<br>60:20<br><b>resulting</b> 10:14<br><b>results</b> 8:14<br>42:7 60:19<br><b>retracing</b> 42:25<br><b>return</b> 37:5,9<br><b>revenue</b> 8:25<br>9:2,3,6,9<br>10:14,15,19,22<br>12:24 13:11<br>40:14 52:4,11,<br>14<br><b>review</b> 16:20<br>29:14 59:22<br>60:1,11 62:20,<br>22 63:5 | <b>reviewed</b> 46:7<br>56:20 60:6<br><b>reviewing</b><br>29:15<br><b>revised</b> 8:15<br>9:5,8 12:19,25<br>54:13<br><b>Rex</b> 5:19<br><b>room</b> 44:19<br><b>rules</b> 62:18<br><hr/> <b>S</b> <hr/> <b>safe</b> 48:13<br><b>said</b> 13:20 42:7<br><b>Salt</b> 10:11 15:1<br>22:8 36:14<br>59:19<br><b>same</b> 15:25<br>16:4 33:14<br>45:4 58:12<br><b>satisfied</b> 29:12<br>40:24 41:23<br><b>say</b> 17:23<br>19:24 33:24<br>37:5,7,9 63:18<br><b>saying</b> 31:4<br><b>says</b> 37:4,6,8,9<br>39:19 40:8<br>55:2<br><b>schedule</b><br>13:13<br><b>Schmid</b> 5:10,<br>11 11:20 12:5<br>14:5,6,16 16:7,<br>13,15 17:13<br>20:16,20 21:7,<br>10 23:11 25:2<br>26:13,14,24<br>28:6,10,16,18<br>30:13,15,22<br>31:18 32:8,11,<br>13,15 34:10<br>35:23 37:20<br>38:15 43:18,22 |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 44:1,5 45:13,<br>17,18,19 46:18<br>48:11 49:10<br>53:12 54:3<br>55:22,23 56:4<br>58:1 61:3 62:7<br>63:13,14,16,<br>18,19,22<br><b>second</b> 17:3<br>20:22 23:24<br>32:25 34:14,15<br>37:1,2 39:4<br>58:19<br><b>section</b> 8:2<br>13:5 18:22<br>20:23 47:10<br>61:22<br><b>seeking</b> 10:5<br><b>seeks</b> 10:7<br>37:24 49:14<br><b>senior</b> 7:4<br><b>sent</b> 15:18,23<br><b>sentence</b><br>34:15 37:1<br>39:3,20<br><b>September</b><br>9:17 11:14,16<br>15:10,19,22<br>27:13 28:1,12<br>34:6 36:23<br>44:15 55:8<br><b>serve</b> 4:4<br><b>service</b> 4:10<br>10:9 23:20<br>26:2,3 29:5,7,<br>12 38:10 50:12<br>52:13,15 53:2<br><b>Services</b> 5:21<br>59:18<br><b>set</b> 47:9 62:15<br><b>several</b> 4:6<br><b>sheets</b> 8:10<br>62:17,20 63:2<br><b>should</b> 8:11<br>13:17 15:18,25 | 20:23,25 21:1,<br>2,11 27:23<br>37:5,7,9 55:5,7<br><b>show</b> 22:24<br>40:4,15<br><b>showing</b> 40:10<br><b>shown</b> 8:14<br>24:11<br><b>shows</b> 9:11<br>22:21<br><b>simple</b> 42:18<br><b>since</b> 10:11<br>41:1<br><b>sir</b> 33:12<br><b>slightly</b> 9:1<br>52:15<br><b>small</b> 51:16<br><b>smaller</b> 52:3<br><b>SNG</b> 8:1 24:6,<br>8,9,21<br><b>something</b><br>39:18 63:23<br><b>sorry</b> 8:6<br>12:10,15 18:18<br>34:12 42:17<br>63:18<br><b>South</b> 6:23<br>15:1 22:8 27:6<br>36:14 59:19<br><b>speak</b> 48:17<br>50:4 62:25<br><b>speaking</b> 5:1,<br>3,7 30:22<br>35:25<br><b>special</b> 10:19<br><b>specifically</b><br>12:22 58:18<br><b>spring</b> 40:2<br>41:8,19<br><b>start</b> 4:21<br><b>started</b> 58:11<br><b>starting</b> 4:22<br><b>starts</b> 39:4<br><b>state</b> 6:21,23 | 14:17 22:5,8<br>26:25 36:10,14<br>39:19 59:15<br><b>statement</b><br>32:22 35:9<br>60:4,22<br><b>statisticians</b><br>41:4<br><b>step</b> 11:2 17:3<br>20:13,22 58:19<br><b>Stephenson</b><br>5:1 6:11,12,16,<br>23,25 7:19<br>9:15 11:17,25<br>12:9,10,16,18<br>13:24 14:2<br>21:11,14 31:2<br>50:21 51:24<br>52:10,22 54:10<br><b>steps</b> 42:25<br><b>sticking</b> 42:1<br><b>still</b> 18:13<br>19:10,23<br>54:14,16<br><b>stipulated</b> 11:2<br><b>Street</b> 22:8<br>36:14<br><b>study</b> 11:4<br><b>subject</b> 15:10<br><b>submission</b><br>9:16 11:15<br>34:5<br><b>submit</b> 32:22<br>62:17<br><b>submitted</b><br>11:14 46:8<br>56:21 59:23<br>60:1 63:10<br><b>subpenny</b><br>18:12<br><b>subsequent</b><br>11:4<br><b>such</b> 62:19<br><b>summarize</b><br>10:4 23:16 | 37:24 49:14<br>50:14<br><b>summarized</b><br>57:5<br><b>summary</b><br>11:11 16:16<br>24:23 28:19<br>29:25 38:11<br>40:18 45:20<br>46:13 51:4,21<br>53:7 56:12,25<br>57:1,17,25<br>59:1 60:4 62:4<br><b>Summers</b> 5:6<br>21:21,22,25<br>22:5,7 23:9,15<br>24:24 25:1,4<br>26:8,11 33:1<br><b>supervisor</b><br>22:12<br><b>supplemental</b><br>9:16 11:15<br><b>supplier</b> 23:24<br>28:25<br><b>supports</b> 46:7<br>56:20 57:1<br><b>surcharge</b> 24:4<br><b>sworn</b> 6:13,17<br>14:8,13 22:1<br>26:16,21 36:2,<br>6 44:3 48:18<br>59:6,11<br><b>system</b> 47:13 | 47:4<br><b>tariff</b> 4:13,18<br>8:2,10 13:5<br>18:23 38:3,7<br>45:24 47:10,14<br>49:17 61:23<br>62:17 63:2<br><b>tax</b> 10:17<br><b>technical</b> 27:5,<br>9 36:23 38:23<br>60:10,12<br><b>terribly</b> 12:15<br><b>test</b> 29:6 55:3,6<br><b>testified</b> 6:18<br>13:1 14:14<br>22:2 26:22<br>33:15 36:7<br>47:25 59:12<br><b>testimony</b> 14:3<br>15:15 18:5<br>23:5 28:4<br>30:23 32:6,23<br>33:24 35:3<br>37:14 43:7<br>45:9 48:4 49:4<br>55:18 58:9<br>59:1 62:3,9<br><b>than</b> 8:4 16:24<br>29:9 31:9<br>34:11 60:14<br><b>their</b> 17:6<br>19:16,20 29:3,<br>21 46:10 47:13<br>56:24<br><b>Therefore</b><br>24:20<br><b>things</b> 31:20<br>32:25 42:20<br>54:21<br><b>third</b> 39:19<br><b>three</b> 5:15<br>10:16 57:4<br><b>through</b> 8:20<br>13:12 18:8<br>31:10 37:6,7 |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 38:7 50:20<br>51:21,25 52:12<br>55:8<br><b>time</b> 4:6 6:1<br>31:12 32:21<br>35:18 57:10<br>60:5<br><b>title</b> 14:18,21<br>27:1 44:8<br><b>today</b> 5:21<br>8:15 9:23 14:3<br>16:5 23:5 32:6<br>36:24 37:14<br>45:4,9 49:4<br>50:6 52:23<br>53:7 57:3 60:2,<br>15 62:5,15<br>63:4<br><b>today's</b> 16:25<br><b>tomorrow</b><br>62:18<br><b>total</b> 10:21<br>24:18 29:11<br>53:24<br><b>tracker</b> 8:12<br>10:7,11 20:11<br>21:1 27:20,23<br>30:11,23 51:19<br>53:4<br><b>tracking</b> 34:16<br>35:3<br><b>treatment</b><br>10:17 13:3,14<br><b>tried</b> 41:21<br><b>truth</b> 6:18<br>14:14 22:2<br>26:22 36:7<br>59:12<br><b>trying</b> 40:14<br><b>turn</b> 34:9 36:25<br>39:14 51:23<br>54:24<br><b>two</b> 5:12 19:21<br>38:18 54:9<br>63:1 | <b>typical</b> 9:10<br>10:24 11:7<br>17:5 24:16<br>29:21 38:10<br>46:9 49:25<br>50:11 52:12,16<br>53:2 56:23<br>57:19 62:25<br><b>typically</b> 55:6<br><b>typo</b> 23:2 55:4<br><br><hr/> <b>U</b><br><hr/> <b>Uh-huh</b> 12:23<br>19:2 20:7 26:9<br>62:1<br><b>unchanged</b><br>51:13,17<br><b>under</b> 7:7 9:19<br>10:2 15:8<br>22:15 36:19<br>46:4 48:23<br><b>undercollected</b><br>24:3,6,10 38:4<br>46:1,6<br><b>undercollectio</b><br><b>n</b> 38:5<br><b>understand</b><br>47:11<br><b>understanding</b><br>19:25 34:16<br><b>until</b> 16:23<br>17:11 20:1<br>29:23 35:11,15<br><b>updated</b> 9:6<br><b>usage</b> 19:20<br><b>used</b> 15:25<br>34:19<br><b>using</b> 10:24<br>24:13,17<br><b>Utah</b> 4:5,11<br>22:9 23:19,20<br>24:16 36:15<br>59:20<br><b>Utilities</b> 5:12 | 14:23 27:4<br><b>utility</b> 14:24<br>15:3 59:17<br><br><hr/> <b>V</b><br><hr/> <b>various</b> 4:25<br><b>verdict</b> 25:14<br><b>version</b> 54:13<br><b>voice</b> 6:3<br><b>volumes</b> 19:16<br><br><hr/> <b>W</b><br><hr/> <b>wait</b> 35:10<br><b>waited</b> 35:15<br><b>waive</b> 43:15<br><b>walk</b> 8:20<br>50:19 51:20<br><b>want</b> 25:10<br>34:15 38:25<br>39:18 41:6<br>42:25 47:17<br>51:25 55:1<br>58:9,23<br><b>wanted</b> 33:13<br>34:4,20 35:2,6<br>36:23 54:21<br><b>warm</b> 24:9<br><b>warmer</b> 41:22<br><b>way</b> 35:13<br>40:24 41:15,23<br>42:20 56:9<br><b>ways</b> 41:4<br><b>weather</b> 24:9<br>39:15,24 40:3,<br>11 41:3,9,15<br>47:6 61:14,20<br><b>welcome</b> 4:21<br>54:19<br><b>went</b> 6:5 18:8<br>39:6 52:14<br><b>West</b> 29:7,12,<br>16<br><b>Wheelright</b><br>5:17 26:15,16, | 17,20 27:3<br>28:18 30:1,21<br>31:19 33:14<br>35:4 44:2,6<br>45:19 46:18,<br>20,25 47:15,24<br>48:7,10 55:24<br>56:5 58:1,3,5<br><b>whether</b> 19:9<br>25:18 39:23<br>42:6<br><b>while</b> 29:8<br>31:19 56:18<br>57:15<br><b>will</b> 5:1,3,7,16,<br>21 8:15 17:6<br>19:8,18 20:5<br>26:4 29:12,18,<br>21 35:24 36:10<br>38:8 42:9,11,<br>13 46:10 47:21<br>49:25 50:11<br>51:9,20 53:19<br>56:23 57:10,20<br><b>willing</b> 50:24<br><b>wish</b> 21:12<br>35:16 47:25<br><b>within</b> 47:12<br><b>witness</b> 5:14,<br>16,21 6:14 8:6,<br>9 14:4,7,10<br>17:19 18:6,18<br>20:22 21:23<br>25:6 26:15,18<br>30:2 35:19<br>36:3 38:19<br>43:25 44:1<br>51:3,9 54:7<br>55:24 59:8<br>61:6 62:6,15<br><b>witnesses</b> 4:25<br>5:13<br><b>wonder</b> 32:20<br>63:10 | <b>work</b> 6:24<br>14:23<br><b>working</b> 40:24<br>41:5,16,17,23<br><b>works</b> 35:19<br><b>worry</b> 45:18<br><b>written</b> 45:4<br><b>wrong</b> 8:7 39:8<br><br><hr/> <b>Y</b><br><hr/> <b>year</b> 10:24 11:7<br>24:7,17 41:8,<br>20 49:24 50:12<br>57:21<br><b>yearly</b> 11:9 |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|